Tillamook County Transportation District
Board of Directors
Regular Monthly Meeting

Dial-A-Ride

A Service of Tillamook County Transportation District

Thursday, October 24, 2019 at 6:30PM

Transportation Building
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, Oregon



BOARD OF DIRECTORS — REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING
Tillamook County Transportation
AGENDA
Thursday, October 24, 2019
Robert J. Kenny Board Hearing Room 3600 Third St., Ste. A, Tillamook, Oregon

REGULAR MEETING

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Announcements & Changes to Agenda

Public & Guest Comments

Executive Session, Real Property Transaction ORS 192.660(2)(e)

SO WN =

GENERAL MANAGERS REPORT

7.  Financial Report (Pgs. 1-19)
8.  Service Performance Report (Pgs. 20-25)
9.  Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance (Pgs. 26-33)
10.  Planning & Development
11.  Grant Funding
12.  Facility/Property Management
13.  NW Rides Brokerage
14.  Miscellaneous

CONSENT

15.  Motion to Approve the Minutes of October 17, 2019 Board Workshop (Pgs. 34-35)
16.  Motion to Accept Financial Report: September 2019

17.  Motion to Accept SDIS 2019 Best Practices Survey

18.  Motion to Amend the TCTD Business Credit Card Policy # 3 (Pgs. 36-38)

ACTION ITEMS

19.  Resolution 19-34 In the Matter of Adopting an Intergovernmental Agreement between TCTD
and Tillamook County to the Goad to Provide a Multimodal Facility in Cloverdale (Pgs.39-57)

20.  Resolution 19-35 In the Matter of Adopting the Revised TCTD Staffing Plan (Pgs.58-79)

DISCUSSION ITEMS

21, Staff Comments/Concerns
22, Board of Directors Comments/Concerns
23.  Adjournment

UPCOMING EVENTS
Oregon Transit Association Conference October 27-30, 2019

Next regularly scheduled meeting to be held Thursday, November 21, 2019



Tillamook County Transportation District
Normal Trial Balance
From 9/30/2019 Through 9/30/2019

Account Code Account Title Debit Balance Credit Balance
1001 General Checking Account 140,857.16 -
1006 Payroll Checking 11,547.27 *
1009 NW RIDES ACCOUNT 125,083.21 7
1011 Prop. Mgmt. Checking 39,738.31 7
1020 LGIP - General Account 723,763.22 -
1030 LGIP - Capital Reserve 675,492.55 *
1040 Petty Cash 200.00
Report Total 1,716,681.72 0.00
Report Difference 1,716,681.72 @,
io 7-1

Date: 10/4/19 02:22:26 PM MONTHLY BOARD REPORT - CASH Page: 1



| :28ed ouBLIEA 29 193png (ILA/M Hodoy O A[uoW A 00:1€:50 61/¥1/01 1918

%S HS (00°000°01) 00°000°72 00°000°C1 000 0070 116% pun, [eIousn) WOl Jafsuel],
%0T €T (86°5L€°9) 00°000°L W9l LYT¥S 89°89¢ 016% swoou dxg [euonesad( aseaT]
%0¢ 1€ (00°008°s1) 00°000'¢T 00°00T°L 00°00¢'1 00°00t°€ 006¥ AWODU] 358
%000 (00000°1) 00°000°1 000 £ees 00°0 0TSt awoou] FuISIIsAPY
%08 T (L8°708°TI) 00°000°7Z cI'L61%6 007000 88°0V6°C oISt SWODU] JS3IdIU]
%000 (00000°01) 00°000°01 00°0 £EEE8 000 11847 auIooU] - 19SSV JO 3[es
%00t 1 10°0v¥ 00°000°1 10°0¥Y°1 £€°¢8 000 00b¥ QUIODU] SNIO3UR||9ISIIA
%I11°501 9I'1¢ 00°000°1 911501 £€€8 vEErI 00cd suoneradQ sng [eroadg
%000 (00°000°501) 00°000°S01 00°0 000 00°0 Sy 01€S - SuelD
2%00°0 (00°000°01¢) 00°000°01¢ 000 0070 00°0 ovey @) 11¢6 - sivin
%00°ST (00°LL°0S) 00°00L°L9 00°$7691 00°000°¢€ 000 0Ty ALS - SlueID
%00°0S {00°000%0) 00°000°8% 00°000°vC 0070 00°000°C1 cTTH yore Ju0) Jaulred VIOMN
20070 (00000°0LE) 00°000°0LE 000 000 000 0Ty [1€S V.1 - siuein
%00°0 00vI¥16L) 00 VIt 16L 00°0 00°0 00°0 01T sjueln reade)
%0070 (007000°611) 00°000°6%1 0070 00°0 0070 LELY Areuonansi(] JILS
%0070 {00°000°02€) 00°000°0Z€ 000 000 000 9¢IY Aununuosisiuy J1LS
%v9°L1 (00°€9¢°9€T) 00°000°L8T 00°L£9°0S 0070 00°0 Sely e[nuLo 411
%000 (00°000°58) 00°000°s8 00°0 £€°€80°L 00°0 0€Tt Xe] [J0IAe ] IS NSURL] SSBN
%000 (00°000°0527) 00°000°05T 00°0 00°000°SL 000 0TIt ANUIAY I2qUIL], 37BIS
%9101 (zLce6°8) 00°000°0% 8T Y90y 00°000°01 8TH90°Y 0¥ xg [ Auadol ] srea g 15ed
%000 (00°000°526) 00°000°5T6 00°0 00°0 00°0 001¥ xe], Auadolg
2%09°L1 (zzsisiizy) 00°000°€88 8L V8T ST £€°€85°CL ARZAR % 020t SNUIADY ORI
2%00°€€ (L8 1€T¥81) 00°000°SLT £1°89L°06 L9916°TT 81°06L°ST 000% saIe
%000 (00675965 T)  00°6T596S°1 000 00°0 000 00S€ [ende) Suryrom
SA2INOSAY
95T QDUBLIB A 198png [e10L Jenioy 193png pored [eN1OY poLId]
Mowﬁzm [e10], Tea X ualmnmy) ann) uaany)

6102/0€/6 USNOIYT, 610T/1/6 WOL]
JusWale)S [EIOURUI]

LS uonepiodsuel ], Apuno)) Yoouwe[LL,



7 @98eg oueLRA 2 103png LA/ Hodn qOg A[UoN
%TS'TT PEYeee 00°000°¢ 99°CL9 00°0sT s
%9T°CS 00°'89¢°¢S 00°000°C1L 00'27€9°9 00°000°1 00°sTIY
%129 CLOVEOL 00°000°SL ST659Y 000529 00°0
%9998 00°000°[ 00°005°L 00°005°9 00629 000
%0 ¥T ST T66°81 00°000°¢T SL'L009 £€°€80°C €L°L00°9
%Iy ey v1'108°€9 00°0SL°TII 98°'8¥6°'8¥ L1'6L6°8 0T'LILO
%S56°ET 00°€86°€TL'1 00'¥58°99Z°C 00°1L8TYS 00°SLIPSIT 19°L¥0"9¢€1
Ct9LE]L (9°69¢°8) Mo.oomamm ¥9°696°0¢ 00°SL8 T 00°0
%6T¥T €0°L96°6Y 00700099 L6'TEQ9I 00°0 99°LLYS
%90°0C €6°'LTV 09 00°009°SL LOTLISL 00°0 8L°09¢°¢
%09°6¢ 9¢ £9v°681 00'vS1°69¢C ¥9'069°6L 00°0 S¥'60T°ST
%<6l 9 LTEPIL 00°001°TkI YOTLLLT LY TP8 T L8°6C0°L
%v0°€l €S 0L8°09 00°000°0L SATAN €€€E8°C S8Y0LT
%89°CC 11°900°868 00°00S°191°1 68°€6V £9C LI16L°96 0€'8SH L
%98°0¢C 61°C00°16 00°000°S1L1 [8°L66°¢C £E°€8S°6 Z10L89
%0T°CC [1°88¢89¢C 00°000°S¥€ 68°'119°9L 00°0SL°8T 8579¢S°CI
%661 (60°01L°681°L) 00°201°L9S°L 167 16€°LLE ¢e'80L79CC 8L I¥0°L6
%00°0 (00°Z¥8°S16) 00'ZF8°S16 00°0 000 .oo.o
%00°001 000 00°000°¢ 00°000°¢ 000 00°0
%00°0 (00°98L°9%) 00°98L°9% 00°0 000 000
%000 (00's€8°11) 00°SE8°II 000 000 000
9%ST ADUBLIBA 198png [e10], [enoy 198png poriag [endy polrad
193png [e10L 182 X JU1INYD JuaLIny) JuaLINY)

6107/0€/6 USNOIYL, 610T/1/6 WO

JUSWIBIS [BIOUBUI,]

11181 uonelrodsued ], AJuno’) Joowe[[i L

ovis
0zIs
€01¢
[4128¢
101§
001¢

€cos
£c0¢
ceos
1£0¢
0c0¢
0¥0¢
0€08
020¢
010¢

8l6v
Lle6y
Sl6v
SLev

INd 00°1€:%0 61/71/01 =210

Ay Juswdinby 201330
suondnosqng 29 sang
uruue|J

20UBUDUIRIA 911SI M
1oddng aAnensiuwpy
SI0IAI2G [BUOISSJOI]

SQOIAIDG PUR S[BLISIBIN
SOOIAIAG [AUU0SIA [BI0L

‘suf uonesuadwo)) SI9YI0 A
B2 A [[0IAB]

JUDWIAINAY [[0IAR]
areouljeay [[0IKed
asuadx{ Jj01keq
JdUBULUIR]Y :[[0JKR]
SISALI(] :[]0IAB]

yoedsi(q :joiked
UONENSINIWPY :[|01ked

SIAIDG [2UUOSID]

S20IN0SOY [BIOL

pun,j JLLS WOl JaJsuer],
VIOMN Woy 1ojsuei]

pun,j 1S WOIJ I9JSUBI]

'S YoINJ "Ys A WOLJ IgJSuel],



¢ :98eq oueLIRA 79 198png g LA/M Hoday qOd Alyuon
%00°ST 00°689°¢61 00'%16°0T 00'67T°S 00°00¢ 000
S%Lt'Ll [ANAZE 44| 00°LLS'88Y°] 881£0°09C 17°929°601 19°€79°18
%IVLE 8195’1 00°005°C 79°6¢6 ££°80¢C Y6'L8L
%0V LY €6°L£8°9 00°000°¢l S0'Z91°9 £ee80°L ¥9°610°C
%00°0 00°000°1 00°000'1 000 £ees 00°0
%90°81 TTSLO0T 00°00S+T LYYy LY IV0T LYSSTT
%00°0 00°00S°911 00°00S°911 000 £€'80L6 000
%09°0¢ ¥S60v°01 00°000°S 1 97'06S ¥ 00°0ST°1 78°STL'l
%00°5T 00°00€°9 00°001°8 00°001°T 00°00L 00°00L
4N %Y 00°L90°1 00'L9€°C 00°00¢°1 STLol 00°00¢
%lL'9C 8T660°1 00°005°1 <L 00y 00°s¢1 9L°L91
%¢EE61 6T°6£€°78C 00°000°05€ 1L°099°L9 L97991°6C 8V ¥9€°1T
%CV €T S86PI°EST 00°000°002 SLosS89r L9°999°91 8T080°L1
%01 L1 cgeeeiee 00°00§°LE SI99I'y 00°5Cl'¢e 91'8L6°1
%0T'81 8L°G8CLL 00°005°1T TTrle’e 00°0SL°1 6 10€°1
%00°0 00°09S491 00°09S5¥91 000 000 000
%8%°1¢C SLLTY'LS 00°00<°¢9 CTTLOT £€8SH'S LS09€°1
%%EEET 00°0SI°1 00°00€°1 00°05€ 00°6¢Cl 007001
%vE 1T 01'9€0°EE 00°000°C¥ 06°€96'8 10°00S°¢ 60'880°C
%Ly PL LYV'TSST 00700001 ESLYYL €CEE8 EIILI9
%9¢°C1 8976711 00°000°¢1 TELOY'T €E°€80°1 [4: 242
%00°0 00°000°78 00°000°t8 00°0 00°000°L 000
%99°¢ TL 68V EE 00'005°G€ 8T°010°C £€°80LC 68°CLY
%61°C¢ SLYP8EE 00°00S°€¥ TSS90 00°679°¢ §TSS0°S
%ST ADUBLIBA 198png [B10, eV 128png poiad [en)0y poLd

123png [e10],

Jes A uaLn)

w21 JuaLIn))

610T/0€/6 USNOIYL, 610T/1/6 WO
JUOWIRIE]S [BIDUBUL]

LIsI(q uoneliodsue. I, AJuno) Joowe[[L

00cs

9reEs
oves
0LeS
0ogs
06¢¢
15149
08¢s
0L2S
09¢¢
944%
oves
0ces
olcs
I61¢
06I1¢
c81¢
081¢
SLIS
0LIS
091¢
0¢cl1¢
9489

Nd 00:1€%0 61/71/01 ‘2¥d

swuatdiooy 01 spuswifed 418§

sjuswAe] [eoadg
SIDIAIOS PUE S[BLISIBIA [B1O],

‘Jurepy Aoe, suoneradg
areday] @ e A1adoig
$29,] 9582 X34

sasuadxq SuneiadQ Aedosg
“u0)) Suneiad() [elousn
JUIBJA] 191UQ)) JOJISIA 79 JISUBIL
9SBY I21UQ)) 10}ISIA 29 JSUBL]
puNg UoNe2159y IoqeAWIN
a3e1s0g

sosuadxy [anq

osuadxq o[o1yep

Suluel] 29 [dABIL

asuadxy auoydajo],

udIsa(1-2y AMSqIM

Bunoyrey

UoTRNSIUIWPY [0Y0o[y % SnI(]
sasuadxq [euoneiadp
sasuadxy pleog

sasuadxqg 22130

doueInsuy

S3SUIDIT 2 S99

WY Jemdwo))



¥ :28eg aoueLRA %9 198png (JLA/M Hoday qOd A[yiuopw
%0070 00°000°0€ 00°000°0€ 000 00°005°C 000
%000 00°000°9 000009 00°0 00°00¢ 000
%601 LI'SY6'V 00°000°S €8S L991Y 000
%000 00°000°6L 00°000°CL 000 00°0 00°0
%000 00°000°006 00°000°006 000 00°0 000
%000 00°005°L 00°00S°L 000 00°0 000
%000 00°005°CT 00°005°CT 000 000 00°0
%C0°S1 ¥0'8T9°%8 00'165°66 96°796°F1 reEes’s 867209
%Sy vy 8L°CEP9IL 00°165°6T TTSSIel 00°0 000
%S1°9¢ 9TT6IE 00°000°¢ YL LOBL L991Y 8€C09
%00°0 00°000°S1 00°000°S 1 000 000ST'1 000
%00°0 00°000°0S 00°000°0S 0070 L9'991Y 00°0
%L9°0 00'999%7TC 00'999°6£2°C 00°000°¢1 000 00°0
%000 00°0T$968 00°025°96S 00°0 00°0 00°0
%00°0 00°'S£8°C6S 00°£8°6S 000 000 000
%STL 00°000°6¥1 00°000°191 00°000°C1 00°0 000
%00°0 00°000°01 00°000°01 00°0 000 0070
%¥E0 00°9Ly°198 00'9L¥'¥98 00°000°€ 000 000
%00°0 00°SES°TT 00°SE8°I1 00°0 000 000
%00°ST 00°SEV°61 00¥16°CC 00°6L1°9 00°00¢ 000
%00°¢C 00°0SL°E 00°000°¢ 00°0sT'1 00°0 o]o.o
%ST uUBLIB A 198png feio [enoy 128png poirnd [eN1oy poliad
198png [B10], JB3 & UL LNy LN

610Z/0€/6 USNOIYL 610T/1/6 WOIL]

uswWe)S [BIOURBUIL ]

1LsI([ uonelrodsued ], AJuno)) yoowe[LL,

0v09
1209
0209
0109
0009
ISES
0ces

8¢€€¢
943
0ces
01¢s

0816
SLI6
0916
0cI6
0cl6
0016

10ze

Wd 00:1€%0 61/71/01 *21ed

S19)[ays/23eudig doig sng
juiod uone[n3uell] (3D [an]
opet3dn Jemdwo)
uonippy/puswase[dey uep
uonippypuawaoedey sng
uorRAOUY -sasuadxd ‘ulupy
uoneAoudy 7% Jreday uipyng

saseyaund [ende)

30IAIRS 193(] [B10],
DIAIRS 192 d1LO
asuadxq ueoT dnd
1S2IIU] 1aSBAT X3,
[edmouLlg :asea] X9

0I1AIS 1937
AepnQ rende)
SI9JSuel] [B10 L

[eg puny Suipuy paterdosddeun
21mipuadxyg amin g 10 241353y
pung VIOMN 01 Iajsued],
IAIDSDY I[OIYD A 0} JOJSuBI[
pun,{ [eI2Uar) 0} JQJSUBI],

1€6S d1D7T 03 IogsueL],

SIaJsuel],
sjuowAe ] je1oedg e1o

sjuatdioay 01 syuswked A1LS



G a8eq 2oUBLIBA 29 193pNg (ILA/M HOdY AOE AYyIuoW N 00:T€:40 61/F1/01 2%

%P1l €0°9TS91L9 00°Z0L°L9S°L LL'SLS 0S8 Tr168°€LT L66L8°81T sosuadxy 210
%691 11°006°615°1 00 160°9%S°1 68061797 100sT6 SL'80T°1 LepnQ [ende) [elo],
%8L°0 - LOTLTSEY'T 00°00S9vv°' T €6'LTTLL LY9IPE L1909 saseyoIng [ende)) [e1o ]
%8L'T 06'9T£°68¢ 00°005°00¥ 0L €LI‘ll 000 L1'909 0€09 swofoid fende) 10O
%ST SDUBLIBA 108png [e10]. [enjoy 198png pousd [en1oy pouag
198png 10 IBd A JU2LIN)) JuaLIN)) Jua1In))

610T/0€/6 USNOIYL, 6107/1/6 WOL]
JuoUIIE)S [BIDUBUIL]

PLSI uoneliodsuel ], AJuno)) jooweyiy,



[ :95ed ooUBLIEA 79 123pNg (LLA/M Hoday qOF AJUIuoW N 8E:0€40 61/¥1/01 =1ed

%00°0 (00s¢€) 000 00°6€ 000 000 0618 Funoyrep
%l0ve 19°668°1 00°00sC 6€°009 ££'80C ¥6'99¥ 08I1¢ sasuadxy [euoreled()
%6101 96°76£°T1 00°008°€1 YO'LOV'I 0070811 V1°2e9 0LTS sasuadxg 9010

%00°0 00°000°C 00°000°C 000 L9991 00°0 091¢ SouE.INSU]

%¥T 10¢ (66'%20°8) 00°000°C 66720701 L9991 000 0cIS SISUNRNTY 78 S99
%0071 00°006CL 00°000°S1 00°001°C 00°0ST°l 00°00L cvic WY eindwo)
%T0°CE 6ET9l 00°005°C 19°6L8 ££°80C (4444 ovis Ay wewdinbyg 22430

%00°0 00°00S°1 00°00S°1 000 00°scl 000 ocIs suonduosqng 7 san(g

%8¢°L 057781 00°000°0¢ 0S'LLY'] L9°999°1 00'86¢°L 001¢ SIVIAISS [BUOISSAPOI]

SIOIAIDG PUB S[BLIDRIA]

%vSve ELVLYLIE 00°000°1 ¢t L8'STEE0L 00°005°€€ £0°667°LE SADIAIIG [AUUOSIA [BI0L
%000 (5°5027) 000 PSc0T 000 000 €Cos su[ uonesuadwo)) SII0 M
9%06'9¢ 98'198 00000°C v1°8€l’l 000 8E6LE £60¢ BQaA |[0IKE(
%S1°991 (rreze’n) 00°000°C [1°€CeE 000 90" chi’l ceos awaINay [[o1fed

%¥9° 641 (6T°9v1°L) 00°000°S1 6T9%FCT 00°0 96'959°L 150¢ auedyi[esH [[0JAed

%199 Y0 Tr0 0L 00°000°¢L 96'LC6'Y 00°0ST9 89¥Se 1 0€0¢ ssuadxd [[0JAed
%88'99 00'vL6'C 00°000°CI 009208 00°000°1 00'920°8 [0S 1oa1ipu] :[joiked
%L0°0T LIU'TLLIST 00°000°G1€ €8'87T°€9 00'0§T°9C $6°8E1°81 01o¢ uolensuIWpY :[[o1fed

SIIAIDG [QUUOSID]
sasuadxyg
%STLT (I¥'91£°995D) 00°000°005°€ 6S°€89°€S6 L9°999°16T ZS €60 16E §90IN0SAY [BI0],
%00°0 (00°000°05¢€) 00°000°05€¢ 000 L9°991°6T 000 00vv QUOJU] SNOAUB[AISTA]
%LT0€ (I7'91€961°C) 00°000°0S1°¢ 65°€89°€S6 00°005°79¢ TS €60 76E o9Toy AMUIAY YMN
$201n0sY
%S¢T JduBLIB A 198png [e10] [enoy 128png potlad [enoy poLdd
193png 101 Iea A jualn)) UL glichiislg)

6107/0€/6 U3NOIYL, 6107/1/6 WoI]
JUSISIB)S [BIOUBUL]

1dLs1q uonepiodsuel ], Ajuno)) yoowe|[L],

7PN (N




=

7 9%ed JoueLIizA % 198png LA/M Hoday qOg A[YIuo
%86°0¢ 6V TP SITT 00°000°005°¢ IS LSTY80°L € €80°06C Yy L8ETSS
%0070 00°000°0% 00°000°0% 000 gereee’e 000
%000 00°000°0v 00°000°0¥ 000 €€ eeee 000
%00°0 00°000°0% 00°000°0% 00°0 geeee’e 00°0
%LTTE 9£'891°8S0°C 00°000°6£0°¢ ¥9'1£8°086 10°0ST°€ST 11°880°C1¢
%9¢°91 06°0SL 00006 orevl 00°SL 00°0
%9991 00000 00008V 00°008 00°00¥ 000
%61'CT VT ESTILT 00°000°0S€ 9L 9VL 8L L9°991°6C 8€'790°CC
%LV IE 00°00Z°0€1 00°000°061 00°008°6S €€ EE8°CI 00°000°61
%60 1¢ YLPEY 1SS 00°000°00¥°C 97°59¢'818 00°000°00T LEBY6 LIV
%60°C S1°S68Y 00°000°¢ 8101 L991Y S6'6¢
%9701 T1'850°8 00°000°6 88116 00°0SL clreeL
%l0°LT VL9651 00°000°02 9T E0r'S L97999°1 67°098°1
%G QOUBLIB A 198png [e10], [eny 198png pold [en)oy poLdd
uww_usm [e10], 1B A ULy Juarmny) uaLny)

6107/0£/6 U3NOIYT, 6107/1/6 Woi]

JUAWDIE)S [BIOUBUL]

PLYSI uonelrodsuea ], AJuno)) JOowe|[L],

cT09

00€¢
18¢¢
L9TS
99T¢
§9tTe
09¢¢
0zee
01cs

Nd 8€:0€:%0 61/11/01 2¥ed

sosuadxq [e10],
KepnQ eude) rero,
saseydan  jende)) [B10],
JUSWI)SIAU] QUBJODT]
saseyoind [eyde)
AepinQ rende)
SIDIAIDG PUE S[RLIAJRIA [BI1O ]
sasuadxg FuneradQ Auadorg
Sy 99O
asanquuay 93e[IA JoUN[OA
USWRSINGUITDY 9FE[IA JOqUIDIA
uonepodsuel ] paseyoind
adeisod
ururei]  [oARI],
ssuadxyg auoydaja],



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account
From 9/1/2019 Through 9/30/2019

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

14738 9/6/2019 375.30 ADP, LLC PAYROLL SUPPORT

14739 9/6/2019 1,215.00 ADVANCED DIESEL SERVICE BUS 27 LABOR/CALIPER

14740 9/6/2019 200.00 Burden's Muffler & Towing TOW BUS 18

14741 9/6/2019 39.75 CAR CARE SPECIALISTS, INC. DEF

14742 9/6/2019 968.39 Advance Auto Parts VEHICLE EXPENSE/INVENTORY

14743 9/6/2019 1,944.00 CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE JANITORIAL & BUS CLEANING

14744 9/6/2019 83.52 CLAYTON NORRBOM MILEAGE TO PORTLAND GREYHOL

14745 9/6/2019 152.59 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES VEHICLE EXPENSE/INVENTORY

14746 9/6/2019 55.00 ECOLUBE ANTIFREEZE RECYCLE

14747 9/6/2019 198.14 FleetPride, Inc. VEHICLE EXPENSE/INVENTORY

14748 9/6/2019 3,481.50 JORDAN SCHRADER RAMIS, PC LEGAL

14749 9/6/2019 500.00 KDEP-FM/KTIL-FM/KTIL-AM ADVERTISING

14750 9/6/2019 3,636.98 LES SCHWAB WAREHOUSE CENTER TIRES

14751 9/6/2019 96.88 McCOY FREIGHTLINER VEHICLE EXPENSE/INVENTORY

14752 9/6/2019 257.88 DAVISON AUTO PARTS, INC. VEHICLE EXPENSE/INVENTORY

14753 9/6/2019 8.00 OR DEPT OF MOTOR VEHICLES driver records

14754 9/6/2019 64.74 PETERSON TRUCKS INC BUS 18 NSBU ASSEMBLY

14755 9/6/2019 1,120.05 PETROCARD INC. FUEL

14756 9/6/2019 73.65 Rosenberg Builders Supply SHOP SUPPLIES

14757 9/6/2019 20,809.57 Sheldon Oil Distributors FUEL

14758 9/6/2019 493.84 Tillamook Motor Co. VEHICLE EXPENSE/INVENTORY

14759 9/6/2019 274.56 VERIZON TELEPHONE

14760 9/10/2019 2,378.70 CARDMEMBER SERVICE AUGUST CHARGES

14761 9/18/2019 245.76 ALSCO - Portland Linen mat service

14762 9/18/2019 194.50 Batteries Northwest BATTERIES

14763 9/18/2019 100.00 BIO-MED TESTING SERVICE, INC. DRUG SCREENS

14764 9/18/2019 1,296.00 CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE janitorial and bus cleaning

14765 9/18/2019 99.76 CLAYTON NORRBOM MILEAGE/COVER LINCOLN CITY R

14766 9/18/2019 850.00 CoastCom, Inc. TELEPHONE NWR & TCTD

14767 9/18/2019 103.51 COMCAST CABLE FOR SALEM OFFICE

14768 9/18/2019 3,100.00 COUL CORPORATION PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

14769 9/18/2019 102.00 COUNTRY MEDIA ADVERTISING

14770 9/18/2019 90.37 CRYSTAL AND SIERRA SPRINGS WATER

14771 9/18/2019 52.54 Dish DISH

14772 9/18/2019 77.50 GenXsys Solutions, LLC COMPUTER SUPPORT/PROFILE
CLEANUP

14772 9/18/2019 2,300.00 GenXsys Solutions, LLC COMPUTER SUPPORT

14772 9/18/2019 367.90 GenXsys Solutions, LLC COMPUTER SUPPORT/LICENSE

14773 9/18/2019 1,294.22 Marie Mills Center, Inc JANTITORIAL TRANSIT CENTER

14774 9/18/2019 16.00 NEW AGE CAR WASH van wash

14775 9/18/2019 160.03 Office Depot Credit Plan office supply

14775 9/18/2019 42.59 Office Depot Credit Plan office supply

14775 9/18/2019 38.62 Office Depot Credit Plan office supply

14775 9/18/2019 (5.51)  Office Depot Credit Plan RETURN

14776 9/18/2019 142.29 PACIFIC CITY SUN advertising

14776 9/18/2019 284.58 PACIFIC CITY SUN advertising

14777 9/18/2019 12.20 Pacific Office Automation copies

14778 9/18/2019 95.00 PAUL NORTON CDL

14779 9/18/2019 917.88 PETROCARD INC. fuel

14780 9/18/2019 225.22 Pacific Office Automation copier lease

14781 9/18/2019 453.51 PINPOINT STITCHES AND INK LLC uniforms

14782 9/18/2019 49.60 Schetky Northwest Sales, Inc. SHOP SUPPLIES

14783 9/18/2019 5,715.13 Tillamook County MAY 21, 2019 SPECIAL ELECTION

14784 9/18/2019 288.00 TILLAMOOK COUNTY SHOPPER, LLC FAIR SCHEDULE

14784 9/18/2019 48.00 TILLAMOOK COUNTY SHOPPER, LLC ADVERTISING

14785 9/18/2019 49.95 VANIR BROADBAND, INC. INTERNET

14786 9/24/2019 368.35 ADP, LLC ADP PAYROLL SUPPORT

Date: 10/10/19 10:18:53 AM

Page: 1



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account
From 9/1/2019 Through 9/30/2019

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description
14786 9/24/2019 66.00 ADP, LLC adp payroll support

14787 9/24/2019 622.85 E & E Auto Body, Inc. VAN 102 DOOR REPAIR/LABOR
14788 9/24/2019 50.00 Gary A. Hanenkrat 091919 BOARD MEETING
14789 9/24/2019 1,980.25 GenXsys Solutions, LLC LAPTOP

14790 9/24/2019 50.00 JACKIE EDWARDS 091919 BOARD MEETING
14791 9/24/2019 50.00 JIM HUFFMAN 091919 BOARD MEETING
14792 9/24/2019 50.00 JUDY RIGGS 091919 BOARD MEETING
14793 9/24/2019 95.00 KATHLEEN SCHWABE CDL PHYSICAL

14794 9/24/2019 50.00 Linda Adler 091919 BOARD MEETING
14795 9/24/2019 50.00 MARTY HOLM 091919 BOARD MEETING
14796 9/24/2019 714.44 METRO OVERHEAD DOOR, INC. BUS GATE REPAIR

14797 9/24/2019 95.00 RICHARD DIETZ CDL PHYSICAL

14798 9/24/2019 82.59 TABATHA WELCH MILEAGE/HR TRAINING
14799 9/24/2019 42.68 Tillamook PUD ELECTRIC LARGE BUS BARN
14799 9/24/2019 30.82  Tillamook PUD ELECTRIC SMALL BUS BARN
Report Total 61,633.17

Date: 10/10/19 10:18:53 AM

Page: 2



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1006 - Payroll Checking
From 9/1/2019 Through 9/30/2019

Document Document

Number Date Payee

5532 9/13/2019  HRA VEBA TRUST

5533 9/19/2019  SPECIAL DISTRICTS INS.
SERVICE

5534 9/19/2019  PACIFIC SOURCE

Date: 10/10/19 10:19:00 AM

Page: 1



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1009 - NW RIDES ACCOUNT

From 9/1/2019 Through 9/30/2019

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

2137 9/6/2019 1,356.60 AAA RIDE ASSIST NWR

2138 9/6/2019 1,533.90 ALFREDO EVANGELISTA VOLUNTEER MILEAGE

2139 9/6/2019 2,304.06 ALICE CONLEY VOLUNTEER MILEAGE

2140 9/6/2019 1,315.46 JANNA SMITH VOLUNTEER MILEAGE

2141 9/6/2019 2,751.70 JOHN REKART JR VOLUNTEER MILEAGE

2142 9/6/2019 79.50 JORDAN SCHRADER RAMIS, PC LEGAL - BROKERAGE

2143 9/6/2019 2,174.62 JOY WINKELHAKE VOLUNTEER MILEAGE

2144 9/6/2019 3,294.60 KANDIS LIDAY VOLUNTEER MILEAGE

2145 9/6/2019 489.62 LEANN CHUINARD VOLUNTEER MILEAGE

2146 9/6/2019 2,776.70 SEAN REKART VOLUNTEER MILEAGE

2147 9/6/2019 2,599.07 VAL HOLYOAK VOLUNTEER MILEAGE

2148 9/6/2019 2,202.84 WILLIAM NERENBERG VOLUNTEER MILEAGE

2149 9/10/2019 619.82 CARDMEMBER SERVICE AUGUST CHARGES

2150 9/11/2019 2,962.50 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR

2150 9/11/2019 11,864.75 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR

2150 9/11/2019 7,861.21 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR BENEFITS

2150 9/11/2019 8,838.83 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. 083019 nwr payroll

2150 9/11/2019 9,671.12 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. nwr payroll

2150 9/11/2019 9,445.29 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR PR 081619

2151 9/11/2019 472.47 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. nwr august rent

2152 9/18/2019 1,333.64 AAA RIDE ASSIST NWR

2152 9/18/2019 1,521.96 AAA RIDE ASSIST nwr

2153 9/18/2019 97.44 CATHY BOND MILEAGE/CARE OREGON
TRAINING/RTAP

2154 9/18/2019 1,315.09 CoastCom, Inc. TELEPHONE NWR & TCTD

2155 9/18/2019 5,079.40 COLUMBIA COUNTY RIDER NWR

2155 9/18/2019 5,110.60 COLUMBIA COUNTY RIDER NWR TRANSPORTATION

2155 9/18/2019 170.00 COLUMBIA COUNTY RIDER BUS PASSES

2155 9/18/2019 326.00 COLUMBIA COUNTY RIDER BUS PASSES

2156 9/18/2019 85.00 CRYSTAL AND SIERRA SPRINGS WATER

2157 9/18/2019 700.00 GenXsys Solutions, LLC COMPUTER SUPPORT

2158 9/18/2019 2,138.24 COLUMBIA MEDICAL NWR

2159 9/18/2019 6,235.20 K & M MEDIVAN NWR

2159 9/18/2019 12,259.35 K & M MEDIVAN TRANSPORTATION

2159 9/18/2019 11,020.65 K & M MEDIVAN nwr

2160 9/18/2019 83.52 LAURA BEELER MILEAGE/TRAINING CARE OREGO

2161 9/18/2019 7,364.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE NWR

2161 9/18/2019 198.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE NWR AFTER HOURS PHONE

2162 9/18/2019 225.22 Pacific Office Automation copier lease

2163 9/18/2019 466.94 PINPOINT STITCHES AND INK LLC uniforms

2164 9/18/2019 13,199.16 RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE NWR

2164 9/18/2019 12,864.59 RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE TRANSPORTATION

2165 9/18/2019 375.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT NWR

2166 9/18/2019 18,188.00 WAPATO SHORES NWR

2166 9/18/2019 15,132.75 WAPATO SHORES NWR

2167 9/19/2019 1,527.20 AAA RIDE ASSIST NWR

2168 9/19/2019 1,387.64 COLUMBIA MEDICAL NWR

2169 9/19/2019 12,053.44 RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE NWR

2170 9/24/2019 11,138.75 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR

2170 9/24/2019 11,584.50 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR TCTD BILLING

2170 9/24/2019 9,340.00 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR TCTD BILLING

2170 9/24/2019 10,122.51 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. 092719 nwr payroll

Report Total 247,258.45

Date: 10/10/19 10:19:08 AM

BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1009 NWR ACCOUNT

Page: 1

e

.\-\..



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1011 - Prop. Mgmt. Checking
From 9/1/2019 Through 9/30/2019

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

4236 9/6/2019 350.00 CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE JANITORIAL & BUS CLEANING
4237 9/6/2019 13,155.22 Oregon Department of Transport OTIB LOAN

4238 9/6/2019 268.62 TILLAMOOK CITY UTILITIES WATER & SEWER

4239 9/6/2019 166.95 CITY SANITARY SERVICE GARBAGE

4240 9/18/2019 300.00 CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE janitorial and bus cleaning

4241 9/18/2019 603.57 Marie Mills Center, Inc JANITORIAL 3RD ST

4242 9/24/2019 1,291.56 Tillamook PUD ELECTRIC AND LOAN PAYMENT
Report Total 16,135.92

Date: 10/10/19 10:19:15 AM

Page: 1



[UMPQUA BANK: CLOSING DATE 9/25/2019 |

Date  |Vendor Description of Transaction | Amount
] - DOUG PILANT 1 -
8/30/2019 |FRED MEYER |[RETURN ITEM B 5 (31.99)|
8/26/2019 |POSTABOX POSTAGE s 24.77
| 8/30/2019 |ORIENTAL GARDEN MEAL/MEETING/GREYHOUND $ 22.00
8/30/20198 |AMAZON VEHICLE EXPENSE/TAIL LAMP 5 113.22
9/3/2019 |FACEBOOK _|ADVERTISING - |3 70.70
9/10/2019 [TUP TIM THAI B |MEAL/PTAC $ 23.45
9/11/2019 |[TUP TIM THAI MEAL/OTA $ 25.45
9/11/2019 |QDOBA IMEAL/PTAC $ 9.50
9/12/2019 |TUP TIM THAI MEAL/OTA $ 3790
9/13/2019 |SHARIS ~ |[MEAL/OTA i $ 18.97
9/13/2019 | PHOENIX INN HOTEL FOR PTAC/OTA - $  356.77
9/13/2019 |PARKSIDE _|MEALS/MEETING W/JUDY I 35.50
9/20/2019 |DOUBLETREE HILTON HOTEL FOR RTAP | $ 1,087.64
9/20/2019 | SUBWAY MEAL/RTAP - $ 11.79
B $  1,805.67
[— | CATHY BOND
08/28/19 |PACIFIC WEST AMBULANCENWR PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION $ 94,00
08/29/19 |BELNICK RETAIL OFFICE CHAIRS/NWR - $ 528.16
09/03/19 |SEASIDE BREWERY MEAL/CJIS TRAINING TCTD $ 21.00
09/06/19 |ADOBE | SOFTWARE/ADMIN $ 24.99
09/06/19 | IRON MOUNTAIN SHREDDING/ADMIN ' $ 150.80
09/09/19 |NEWEGG LAPTOP CORD/NWR 163 18.98
09/10/19 |FIELDPRINT BACKGROUND CHECK B $ 12.50
09/10/18 |FIELDPRINT BACKGROUND CHECK B $ 1250
_09/12/19 [LANGUAGE LINE NWR PHONES $ 7.90
 09/12/19 |LANGUAGE LINE NWR PHONES s 3.95
09/13/19 [USPS _ POSTAGE/NWR |s 50.00
09/13/19 |LANGUAGE LINE INWR PHONES '$ 3950
09/16/19 |CITY PARKING PARKING NWR TRAINING $ 5.00
09/16/19_|CITY PARKING PARKING NWR TRAINING $ 5.00
09/16/19 |RED ROBIN MEAL/TRAINING NWR $ 14,00
09/16/19 |BLACK ROCK MEAL/TRAINING NWR $ 8.20
09/16/19 LANGUAGE LINE NWR PHONES $ 35.55
09/17/19 | COPPER RIVER RESTAURA|MEAL/TRAINING NWR $ 83.00
09/17/19 [CHAI YO MEAL/TRAINING NWR $ 34.00
09/17/19 ,DOUBLETREE HILTON PARKING/RTAP TCTD B - $ 27.00
09/17/19 | FAIRFIELD INN HOTEL/RTAP TRAINING TCTD R 66.59
09/17/19 |FAIRFIELD INN HOTEL/NWR TRAINING § 6658
09/18/19_|FIELDPRINT BACKGROUND CHECK $ 12.50
09/18/19 |ENDICIA POSTAGE/NWR s 9,95 |
09/20/19 |LANGUAGE LINE NWR PHONES - 3 55.30
- . $  1,386.95
BRENT OLSON B |
08/26/19 [MTCPRO | SOFTWARE/MAINTENANCE - $ 98.00
08/29/19 | LA MEXICANA _ |MEALS/MEETING W/CLAYTON $ 31.40
~ 08/30/19 | CUMMINS BUS 32 MAINTENANCE /s 582.03
| 09/17/19 |MOD PIZZA _ MEAL/NWR VEHICLE INSPECTION |'s 8.67
09/23/19 |MCDONALDS MEAL/NWR VEHICLE INSPECTION /s 665
09/24/19 [MTCPRO B | SOFTWARE/MAINTENANCE 8 98.00
B $ 824.75
[ [ B TABATHA WELCH
_ 08/26/19 |SAFEWAY |FLOWERS B $ 18.99
09/06/19 |USPS [POSTAGE $ 25.00
09/11/19 |SAFEWAY OFFICE SUPPLIES - $ 39.47
09/13/19 |USPS POSTAGE ' s 100.00
09/16/19 |ENDICIA POSTAGE |8 17.99
09/19/19 |ECOLUBE VEHICLE EXPENSE $ 55.00
09/20/19 |NANI PAPA STAFF MEALS '8 39.60
L B _ $ 296.05
___CLAYTON NORRBOM
09/04/19 {ELKS LODGE |COMPANY PICNIC/ATU s 200.00
09/10/19 [COSTCO |BUS CLEANING SUPPLIES $ 135.80
09/18/19 |LOVE LOVE MEALS/TRAINING/DRIVERS $ 20.85
L B $ 356.75
— Charges total| $ 4,670.17
Grand Total| $ 4,670.17

Y
APPROVAL kY .~

DATE [0~ F-79




UMPQUA BANK

September 2019 Statement Page 10of 5
s Open Date: 08/24/2019 Closing Date: 09/24/2019 Account: 790
tﬁ Visa® Company Card with Rewards Cardmember Service c 1-866-552-8855

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) BUS 30 ELN 8 15

Activity Summary

Previous Balance + $2,998.49
Payments - $2,998.52¢cr
Other Credits - $31.99cr

Reward Points Purchases + $4,766.16

Earned This Statement 5,377 Balance Transfers $0.00

Reward Center Balance 8,534 Advances $0.00

as of 09/23/2019 piher Pepiis. S

For details, see your rewards summary. ees Charge '

Y ! interest Charged $0.00
New Balance = $4,734.14

Past Due S T%0.007
Minimum Payment Due $48.00
Credit Line $10,000.00
Available Credit $5,265.86
Days in Billing Period 32
N7 Mail payment coupon Pay online at Pay by phone

Payment Options: >A with a check \@ myaccountaccess.com (' 1-866-552-8855

Please detach and send coupon with check payable to: Cardmember Service CPN 001468460

UMPQUA BANK

24-Hour Cardmember Service: 1-866-552-8855

c . to pay by phone
» to change your address

000009548 01 SP 000638213964383P Y

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

3600 3RD ST STE A
TILLAMOOK OR 97141-2730

473414k
Account Number 0
Payment Due Date 10/22/2019
New Balance $4,734.14
Minimum Payment Due $48.00

Amount Enclosed 3

Cardmember Service

P.0. Box 790408
St. Louis, MO 63179-0408



UMPQUA BANK

September 2019 Staterment 08/24/2019 - 09/24/2019 Page 20f 5
. TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Cardmember Service ‘: 1-866-552-8855

Rewards Center Activity as of 09/23/2019
Rewards Center Activity* 0
Rewards Center Balance 8,534

*This item includes points redeemed, expired and adjusted.

This Year
Rewards Earned Statement to Date
Points Earned on Net Purchases 4 080 21,182
Gas, Restaurants & Telecom Double Points 1,287 6,102
| Total Earned 5377  27,284|

For rewards program inquiries and redemptions, call 1-888-229-8864 from 8:00 am to 10:00 pm (CST)
Monday through Friday, 8:00 am to 5:30 pm (CST) Saturday and Sunday. Automated account information is
available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

Paying Interest: You have a 24 to 30 day interest-free period for Purchases provided you have paid your
previous balance in full by the Payment Due Date shown on your monthly Account statement. In order to
avoid additional INTEREST CHARGES on Purchases, you must pay your new balance in full by the
Paymeni Due Date shown on the front of your monthly Account statement.

There is no interest-free period for transactions that post to the Account as Advances or Balance Transfers
except as provided in any Offer Materials. Those transactions are subject to interest from the date they post
to the Account until the date they are paid in full.

SKIP THE MAILBOX. Switch to e-statements and securely access your statements online. Get started at
myaccountaccess.com/paperiess

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation

08/30 08/28 7700 FRED-MEYER #0377  TILLAMOOK OR $31.99¢cr

MERCHANDISE/SERVICE RETURN

08/26 08/23 6900 SQ *POSTABOX Tillamook OR $24.77

08/30 08/29 8708 ORIENTAL GARDENINC BANKS OR $22.00
08/30 08/28 5116 AMAZON.COM*MO3XX8H81 A AMZN.COM/BILL WA $113.22
09/03 09/03 0720 FACEBK HHDYMNBQR2 650-5434800 CA $70.70
09/10 09/08 1254 TUP TIM THAI CUISINE SALEM OR $23.45
09/11 09/08 4971 TUP TIM THAI CUISINE SALEM OR $25.45
09/11 09/09 7404 QDOBA 2962 SALEM OR $9.50
09/12 09/10 3914 TUP TIM THAI CUISINE SALEM OR $37.20
09/13 09/11 1966 SHARIS OF SOUTH SALEM SALEM OR $18.97
09/13 09/11 1110 PHOENIX INN SUITES 701 SALEM OR $356.77
09/13 08/12 3032 PARKSIDE DINER GARIBALD! ©OR $35.50
Continued on Next Page



UMPQUA BANK

September 2019 Statement 08/24/2019 - 09/24/2019 Page 30of5
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Cardmember Service { 1-866-552-8855

Transactions mit $5000
Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
09/20 09/18 5117 DOUBLETREE HOTELS PORTLAND OR $1,151.64
09/20 09/18 9604 SUBWAY 03235298 LAKE OSWEGO OR $11.79
Total for Account 0 7808 $1,869.67

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
S : " PurchasesandOtherDebits -~ .
08/28 08/27 8231 PACIFIC WEST AMBULANCE 503-6486658 OR $94.00
08/29 08/28 4170 BELNICKRETAIL,LLC 770-721-8200 GA $528.16
09/03 0829 2678 SEASIDE BREWERY SEASIDE OR $21.00
09/06 09/05 8221 ADORE *ACROPRO SUBS 800-833-6687 CA $24.99
09/06 09/05 0066 IRON MOUNTAIN 800-934-3453 MA $150.80
09/09 09/06 1540 WWW.NEWEGGBUSINESS.COM 800-320-1119 CA $18.98
09/10 09/10 6344 FIELDPRINT INC 888-291-1369 PA $12.50
09/10 09/10 6015 FIELDPRINT INC 888-291-1369 PA $12.50
09/12 09/11 8550 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA $7.90
09/12 09/11 6183 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7528096 CA $3.95
09/13 09/11 9958 USPS POSTAGE ENDICIA.C 800-576-3278 CA $50.00
09/13 08/12 3407 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA $39.50
09/16 09/14 8310 CTY CTR PARKNG 0610111 PORTLAND OR $5.00
09/16 09/14 8328 CTY CTR PARKNG 0610111 PORTLAND OR $5.00
09/16 09/15 1317 RED ROBINNO 87 HILLSBORO OR $14.00
09/16 09/15 3090 PP*BLACKROCK TIGARD OR $8.20
09/16 09/13 9114 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA $35.55
09/17 09/14 8918 COPPER RIVER RESTAURAN HILLSBORO OR $83.00
09/17 09/15 9192 CHAIYORESTAURANT PORTLAND OR $34.00
09/17 09/15 5767 DOUBLETREE BY HILTON P PORTLAND OR $27.00
09/17 09/16 6753 FAIRFIELD INN & SUITES BEAVERTON OR $133.17
09/18 09/18 8746 FIELDPRINT INC 888-291-1368 PA $12.50
09/18 09/18 3029 ENDICIAFEES 650-321-2640 CA _ $2.85
09/20 09/19 3779 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA $55.30
Total for Account 12022 $1,386.95

Credit Limit $2500

Post Trans

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
e ~ Purchases and Other Debits R = SR
08/26 08/22 0056 SAFEWAY #2723 TILLAMOOK OR $18.99

Continued on Next Page



UMPQUA BANK

September 2019 Statement 08/24/2019 - 09/24/2019

Page 4 of 5

Cardmember Service ( 1-866-552-8855

.. TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 0014694860)

: Transactions

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description

09/06 09/04 9510 USPS POSTAGE STAMPS.C 310-482-5800 CA

09/11 09/02 0464 SAFEWAY #2723 TILLAMOOK OR

09/13 09/11 2840 USPS POSTAGE STAMPS.C 310-482-5800 CA

09/16 089/15 8838 ENDICIA 800-576-3279 CA

09/19 09/18 5662 IN*ECOLUBE RECOVERY, 425.-42935616 WA

09/20 09/19 3682 SQ *NANIPAPA'AISL TILLAMOOK OR
Total for Account 4146

Amount
$25.00
$39.47

$100.00
$17.99
$55.00
$39.60

$296.05

Notation

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description

08/26 0823 5080 FS *www.mtcpro.com 877-3278814 CA
08/29 08/27 5831 LA MEXICANA TILLAMOOK OR
08/30 0829 0074 CUMMINS INC-05 PORTLAND OR
09/17 09/15 ©383 MOD PIZZA ST HELENS B SAINT HELENS OR
09/23 09/21 8558 MCDONALD'SF15375 SCAPPOOSE OR
09/24 0923 2597 FS*www.micpro.com 877-3278914 CA
Total for Account 2649

‘Purchases and Other Debits

Amount

$98.00
$31.40
$582.03
$8.67
$6.65
$98.00
$824.75

Notation

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description

09/04 0828 6414 TILLAMOOK ELKS LODGE N TILLAMOOK OR

09/10 09/09 8712 COSTCO WHSE #0068 SALEM OR
09/18 ~09/17 4669 LOVE LOVE TERIYAKI I SALEM™ OR
Total for Account 675

Amount

$200.00
$135.90

$356.75

Notation

Post Trans

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description

08/13 09/13 8 PAYMENT THANK YOU

09/13 09/13 8 PAYMENT THANK YOU
Total for Account 790

Continued on Next Page

Payments and Other Credits

Amount

$619.82¢cr
$2,998.52crR

Notation

$2,378.70cR ——



UMPQUA BANK

September 2019 Statement 08/24/2019 - 09/24/2019 Page 5of 5
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Cardmember Service (: 1-866-552-8855

Total Fees Charged in 2019 $0.00
Total Interest Charged in 2019 $0.00

Your Annual Percentage Rate (APR) is the annual interest rate on your account.

**APR for current and future fransactions.

Balance Annual Expires
Balance Subject to interest Percentage with
Balance Type By Type Interest Rate Variable Charge _Rate Statement
**BALANCE TRANSFER $0.00 $0.00 YES $0.00 14.49%
**PURCHASES $4,734.14 $0.00 YES $0.00 14.49%
*ADVANCES $0.00 $0.00 YES $0.00 26.24%

c Phone (?) Questions s Mail payment coupon @ Online

with a check
Voice:  1-866-552-8855 Cardmember Service Cardmember Service myaccountaccess.com
TDD: 1-888-352-8455 P.O.Box 6353 P.0O. Box 790408
Fax: 1-866-807-9053 Fargo, ND 58125-6353 St. Louis, MO 63179-0408

End of Statement
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS

Skip the mailbox.

Switch to e-statements and securely access
your statements online. Get started at
myaccountaccess.com/paperless

Visit myaccountaccess.com and click on “Enroll* for 24/7 Credit Card Account Access.

AEmAn AR

y



Tillamook County Transportation District

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE REPORT Sep 2019
RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE SEP SEP YTD YTD YTD %

2019 2018 FY 19-20 FY 18-19 Change
Dial-A-Ride Service
Tillamook County 1,013 749 3,247 2,649 22.6%
NW Rides 680 793 2,269 2,214 2.5%
Dial-A-Ride Total 1,693 1,542 5,516 4,863 13.4%
Deviated Fixed Route Service
Rt 1: Town Loop 3,475 3,460 10,992 11,488 -4.3%
Rt 2: Netarts/Oceanside 569 686 2,058 2,241 -8.2%
Rt 3: Manzanita/Cannon Beach 3,115 2,695 9,829 9,978 -1.5%
Rt 4: Lincoln City 1,466 1,289 5,132 4,055 26.6%
Local Fixed Rt Total 8,625 8,130 28,011 27,762 0.9%
Inter City Service
Rt 5: Portland 877 857 2,924 2,953 -1.0%
Rt 60X: Salem 980 877 3,160 3,072 2.9%
Rt 70X: Grand Ronde 473 486 1,405 1,656 -15.2%
Inter City Total 2,330 2,220 7,489 7,681 -2.5%
Other Services
Tripper Routes 132 142 284 341 -16.7%
Special Bus Operations 106 260 1,069 1,134 -5.7%
Other Services Total 238 402 1,353 1,475 -8.3%
TOTAL ALL SERVICES 12,886 12,294 42,369 41,781 1.4%
ONE-WAY TRIPS BY USER GROUP

Fixed YTD YTD YTD %
USER GROUP Route DAR FY 19-20 | FY 18-19 | Change
General (18 years to 60 years of age) 6,620 271 23,088 23,140 -0.2%
Senior/Disabled 3,667 1,354 16,434 15,683 4.8%
Child/Youth (less than 18 years of age) 907 68 2,847 2,957 -3.7%
Total 11,193 1,693 42,369 41,781 1.4%
OTHER RIDER CATEGORIES Fixed YTD YTD YTD %

Route DAR FY 19-20 | FY 18-19 | Change
Ride Connection o7 | 285 195 46.2%
Tillamook Bay Community College 124 o 387 348 11.2%
NWOTA Visitor Pass 158 610 663 -8.0%
NW Rides . 610 2,013 1,944 3.5%
Helping Hands Shuttle 172 483 182 165.4%

09-19 RIDERSHIP REPORT xlsx /} D

10/8/2019




Tillamook County Transportation District Sept 2019

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE

Operating
Service Passengers Farebox Cost
Month per Hour Ratio per Hour
Dial-A-Ride Services
Sep-18 1.3 59.8% 66.50
Jun-19 14 60.5% 65.08
Jul-19 1.5 60.0% 68.88
Aug-19 1.6 52.8% 78.00
Sep-19 1.6 55.6% 73.66
STANDARD 1.3 65.3% 56.36
Deviated Fixed Routes
Sep-18 6.3 10.2% 67.03
Jun-19 5.7 9.2% 65.01
Jul-19 6.3 9.5% 69.09
Aug-19 6.5 9.1% 78.09
Sep-19 6.3 9.7% 73.64
STANDARD 7.0 12.4% 64.60
Intercity Services
Sep-18 3.4 24.4% 74.09
Jun-19 3.0 20.7% 75.88
Jul-19 3.4 19.5% 76.05
Aug-19 3.4 18.6% 87.42
Sep-19 3.4 19.6% 83.54
|  STANDARD 2.9 31.5% 7286 |
Other Services
Sep-18 57 2.7% 59.73
Jun-19 6.2 9.6% 55.19
Jul-19 5.5 11.2% 63.81
Aug-19 4.9 6.2% 72.10
Sep-19 5.0 7.3% 66.97
| STANDARD 6.9 10.7% 55.54

Dial-a-Ride includes Central, North and South Counties Dial-A-Ride Services

Deviated Fixed Routes: 1 Town Loop, 2 Oceanside, 3 Manzanita/Cannon Beach, 4 Lincoln City
Intercity Routes: 5 Portland, 60X Coastal Connector, 70X Salem/Grand Ronde

Other Services: Trippers and Special Bus Operations



Tillamook County Transportation District Summer Quarter

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE
Operating Cost
Service Passengers Farebox Cost per
Quarter per Hour Ratio per Hour Passenger
Dial-A-Ride Services
Summer -18 1.3 59.1% 67.63 52.30
Fall - 18 1.4 61.7% 65.01 47.33
Winter - 19 1.4 57.0% 67.88 49.18
Spring - 19 1.4 60.5% 65.08 46.14
Summer -19 1.6 55.6% 73.66 47.15
STANDARD 1.3 65.3% 56.36 45.19
Deviated Fixed Route Services
Summer -18 6.3 10.2% 66.99 10.70
Fall - 18 5.9 9.4% 65.26 11.04
Winter - 19 5.7 8.7% 68.35 11.96
Spring - 19 5.7 9.2% 65.01 11.41
Summer -19 6.3 9.5% 73.64 11.66
STANDARD 7.0 12.4% 64.60 9.29
Intercity Services
Summer -18 3.4 23.5% 77.08 22.34
Fall - 18 3.2 22.5% 74.85 23.27
Winter - 19 3.0 19.9% 79.45 26.12
Spring - 19 3.0 20.7% 75.88 2498
Summer -19 3.4 19.6% 83.54 24,93
STANDARD 29 31.5% 72.86 24.86
Other Services
Summer -18 5.7 2.7% 60.25 10.53
Fall - 18 6.0 5.1% 56.98 9.48
Winter - 19 6.3 6.2% 58.45 9.28
Spring - 19 6.2 9.6% 55.19 8.92
Summer -19 5.0 7.3% 66.97 13.30
STANDARD 6.9 10.7% 55.54 8.28
10/14/2019

TCTD MIS Report 2019-20_09.19.xIsx .

o0

\



| ebed %l Ze §EL'220 150D 108li] ¥ J0GE | "eBEs| [B10L
62702 v0'S 100 %0°LZ S0V 656 LbZ'l6L |P0S'89L Z00VZ  |€0E'6Sy  £Ep6EL  |66PLZ  GGG2lL  89Y0L  |69£2P  BZy'Elz | SOIMSS QLDL [elol
28" 160 800 %E L 0S5 2699 €66ZL  |558°¢€ 919 S91F vogt 2.9°€ I8¢ 692 e5e'l AT S80S 18010 (B0
8’y 8071 200 %3C L Sy G149 296°Gl Ler'e S SleoL 289'L cLe'es 20g 8€e 690'L 1SL°L uoneladQ sng [eroads
FAR-] 950 S0 %6°L 2’6 2969 1£0'C =i 4 LL eve'l Z81 6S€ 6L L€ 8¢ 091 staddu)
EERINNEISPETe)
1891 88Y 500 %961 ve  voes G69'08L |0z68E  bel g 88020+ €950V  |9886L  6E9C A2 68Y'L 78598 SIS EET]
ce'e jzA" €00 %0’ Le 16728 7LS'er 6906 £0c’l £/6°ce 892°6 €628l 659 jerac] SOb°L oLl apUOy puelsy X0L
eLL €0 S0°0 %6'8 ge 6798 LO'LL  |epe'rL 668'L vze'/e  Gve'9l  |zze'ee LL0°L 828 09L°€ yOv'9 wsles X09
vZ'ce €L'6 L0°0 %L 6E £e GL'Le LIS LL 80611 2z0'e 1620 0GevL 092'82 £96 288 26T 6EV'8T pueuod S0
NI
869 oLt 600 %G 6 €9  v9tl I87'9z€ |18669 991 0L |Z96C6L  Z96€S 18290l 8vLG vevY 108 ¥e60E a|noy pajeinad [ejoL
L) 6G°L 20°0 %.L'6 R4 £8°6L £78'e8 cl6' /L 80¥'C 2L5'Sy 168°LL See'se vl 050°1 CEL'S 5918 AJD u[odur 0
982 et 600 %S0L 09 8L 129220 |sze'9r 99l XAV v’z |voz'zk 008'L €9l 628'6 ZI6°CL ejlueZUBIN £0
59¢ 90t 500 %0'G e eczL ssy'er  |vie's 9£°L 0092 8LL'D ogz'el 808 009 850'2 1642 9pISUESOQ/SUEIEN Z0
A 0.0 910 %0°0L 96 9699 see'os  [Z9e'9L  SL9T Liv'ey 1682 zes'sL 962} opLL Z66'0L  959°Z dooy umol 10
aN0Y pajeIna(
96°0F 22 9¢ Q00 %9°GG 9L 99°¢L 2.0°092 AT 960'8 061Gl 6E0°EY 09,78 18€'Y 1€6°¢ 916G 0L9'vrlL dvda |ejoL
Z9.S 6965 500 %997 0F €567 GI6'9/) €266 1IEG VEOLOL  Z86'1€  |96620  €E6¢ Zvee 692°¢C VeV GEr sepid MN
cLl €8¢ 00 %0 LL LC 86°69 /G1'€8 Gz8'lL Gel'e 965'LS 2S0'LL G9.'Le Yo'l 881°L Lve'e 916 aprd-v-elg
S0IAI8S SpId-v-eld
($) JnoH ($)s1500  sIs00 SN SINoH ($ UN/eINoy
Bes e ooy Sty e | 1200 | (G500 D50 | peses  posea | sames M caweg | SRME anueney
OB v $/ d  xogaied d  Aunoy lejol | joempu  joenq qmor  beowy ain Pedala o0 QA qgdin
6L0¢/2/0L 6102 1des niyy

0202/610C Ad IenjoyY
aoUBWIONdd pue SONSIIe)S 9Jed-0)-IBd A 1UISIq uonepodsuely Aunos yoowejip



¢ ebed
%98 25529 We'leL  689°8ZL %LVe- |2z 89101 $69°0L %Vl [88S 69€°Zy L8L'LY %9°€" ov6°L- gZy'ele  89g'Lee S90IAIBS L1 ['joL
%89l |p6SC £66°L1 66E°SL %C v L 692 86¢ %e'8-  [ZCl- £9E'L Sl %9€LT |€68 L1E"L 8Ly S80IAIBS JBYJ0 [el0L
%8SL  [9/1°2 296Gl 181°¢1L %ye |8 8¢€¢ 0ee %4°S- |59 690'L PEL'L %S'SLS |v96 LGL'L 481 uonieladQ sng [eroads
%09¢ |6l¥ LEOC ZL9'L %601 |€ e 8C %l4°9V-  |LS- ¥8¢ (5% %4°0€~ [LL- 091 LeC staddu |
ERISEISPEL o)
%Z'EL  |9¢LLe G69'98L 69679l %¥0 |8 GECe 12272 %S¢ |26L- 6872 189'2 %E'6-  [L8L°¢- $8G9¢ Leeov Ayosaul (ejo L
%9vL  |LPS'S LSy €16'L€ %L |8 o] LLS %' G- |LGe- Sov'L 959'L %9°0e- |69L- ovL'L 60G6'C 9puoy puel X0.L
%92l |886'L LL9'LL £29'€9 %00 |0 8¢8 828 %6C |88 09L°¢ 2L0'¢ %'0Z- |E¥9'L- yor'a Ly0'8 waleg X09
%67CL |l6L'8 LLG'LL y.€'€9 %00 |0 288 88 %0°L- |62 ¥26'C £66'C %S'v- |92E°L- 6EV'8C G9.'62 puepiod S0
TR
%66 z6g6C 18V'9Cc  88L°.L6C %00 |0 yeEY'Y YV %60 |6VC 110'8¢ 29l'/e %LV |20S $26°0€ LLy'0e BIN0Y poxI4 |30 [EJOL
%L°6 [44 £¥8'c8 eIl %00 |0 0S0°L 0S0°t %9'9¢ [220°L ZEL'S G507 %691 |08L°L G918 G86'9 AND Ujoour v0
%.'6 ov8'0L £28'22L  /86°LLL %00 |0 £r9°L £ra’L %S'L- |6FL- 6286 866 %60 343 AL xA 16L°CL EJUEZUBI £0
%00} |9¥6'E SSy'er 605°6€ %00 |0 009 009 %C'8  [e8l- 850'C e’z %E'S  |2Ch- 16L'C €lecT apisuesdQ/sHeleN 20
%Z0L |S80°L GGE'9L 04269 %00 |0 obL'L ovL'L %EY-  [96V- 266°0L 8BYLL %18~ |2L9- 9692 8z¢'8 dooumo] L0
Sjnoy PaEInSg
%9°€ 6£6'8 2.0'09¢  €E€L'1Se %S9 |9bC- 1e6°¢ 9/.'¢ %PEL €99 915’6 €98y %.€-  |€09°G- 0l9'vPL  ZLZ'0St yva ejoL
%3¢ |06L'1- G169 G0Z'18L %GCL- |9gE- Zve'e 8/9C %SC |SS 692'C viee %G [94€°2- yEP'SEL  608°¢hl S8pid MN
%86l |62L€EL /51'€8 627'69 %8 |06 8811 860°L %9C¢C 869 VAZAS 6v9°2 %6'€T  |€LL°L 9/1'6 £0v°L 8piy-v-le:g
9VIAIBS 3pII-V-IEId
uny/aIno

aoualaylq | sauatspiqg 1507 [B10]. 1507 [B10L aoualeylq | eouaisylq  SINOH sinoH | esusseyiq | eoualayia sibusseq  siBusseq 90USIBYI | oUBIBYI] SNUSASY  BNnudaAY H/8Inoy

JuaI9d junowy juatiad | junowy  82IM8S 80IAI8g | jusdiad unowy Juaoied | unowy ale ale4

0c/6l 61/81 026l 64/81 0c/6L 6L/8L 0c/el 6L/81

6102 1dag nuyL

uosuedwon JBaA-19AQ-1BIA

610z }das nuy L

610z 1dag nuyy

610z 1des nuy1

61/8L Ad 01 8L/LLAL

Jousiq uonepodsues ] fjunon yooweiL



%E'S 0SG'8¢ 6€2'492 689'82. $1S00 [BJOL
PAWAe] $ %002 yold snid - B EEELS)
A4 $ a1ey AUnoH Yyoeoy %9'LL a5y’ LL 05891 SPO'LGL S1500 1031Ig
%l’LE PE3YIaAQ SNid sng |lews %Z'€ 680'vL £0€'6SY rLe'Shy 1800 peseg AUNOH
69°L¢ 3 aley AlnoH UBAIUIN %E'G £00°2 cep'6EL oep'zeL s1s00 paseq abes
%0°€ 1807 81| snid 1yoid pesyldang [enoy %80~ (ev2'z) LBG'vLT 0r8'9.2 abeapy
8698 ¢ ajey AUnoH |enoy wach 20uUBIdYIq  SaUBIBlId 0z/61 61/81 uopduasaq
:uonenojed ajey AUNoH %0k Snid snid :uotjenojes ajiw Jad 3so) US4 Junowy 0Z/61 Ad O} 6L/BLAL
150 uonenolen uonesadQ sng [e1oadg 6102 Joquiaidag ybnoayl alA uosuedwo)
¢ abegq
%6t~ 920 ¥0'S 0e's %C LL- |%be- %0°LC %% 0E %9'E 1’0 [\54 6'¢ %601 S¥'L 65'GL ¥1'89 Se0IAIBS JUI0 10|
%6’L¥C  |69°0 160 82°0 %P 89t  |%IV %€ L %L°C %0CTL- A oS L's %lbCl 122 16°99 €469 $30NBG JBUIO a
%6°CSS L6'0 80°L gL' %9 LEY  |%B'S %l L %t i %88 v'o- Sy 6% %0°Cl 8L'L S1°49 16'65 uonesadQ sng [eoadg
%891~ Lo 950 89°0 %0’ St~ | %G9 %8 %EFiL %8 v oe- 76 ccl %9'EL v8'L 29’69 844G ssaddu
SITRIS BUIO|
%69 9e°0- 88y It %86~ %8V %961 %t ve %6’ Lo v'e e %8Z1 Sv'6 vGes 60°pL SISIETNTTR
%Z8L-  |8T0- el 5L %S'6E"  |%92- %0t %99 %S 9L- g0 L2 43 %8°CL L¥'6 16828 LGl 3puoy pueis X0/
%9°Ce- 65°0- €0'¢C 29¢ %L 62" %L € %68 %9C) %62 Lo 8’ L€ %9TL S9'6 6198 89, wales Xo9
%G € Se'0 €L'6 80°0L %¥'SL- %Z L %/, 6€ %0 LY %0 L 00 £e £ %6l 626 SLig S8LL puepod S0
AyIsu
%80 100 oLl oLl %G'2- %80~ %56 %2 0l %6'0 1’0 €9 €9 %6'6 t9'g PR £0°49 N0y pajeina( [BIOL
%9'L- €L 651 [7% %S9 %90 %l’6 %6 %992 o'l 61 6¢c %L'6 0L €864 9l'¢cL g upesun vo
%ST €00 et 8c’L %08~ %60 %501 %t L %S b 10~ 09 1’9 %46 099 8LvL 81789 BJIUBZUBW €0
%l'€ €00 0L €0’k %6'EL-  |%80- %0°G %6'S %2 8~ £0 Ve e %001 189 6€°CL 28'69 apisuesd/sHeleN Z0
%B6'E- €00 040 240 %991~ %0°¢- %00} %0°Ch % ¥ ¥'0- 96 (0] % 0L 12’9 96°99 S/09 dooq umel Lo
3oy pajenaq|
%lGl- |19 ze'9z 680¢ %0 [TV %965 %885 %E 1T €0 9l el %80k [91Z 99°€L 05'99 Hva (el
%64 18 69'65 059 %92~ %02 %99, %9'8L %L1 L0 [ 80 %E L 89'L €66/ S8'49 S9apIy MN
%l €00 €82 6.2 %S'e %¥'0 %011 %20 %ECh £0 22 e %L 0L L9 86'69 2zes 9pIy-v-1Beld
ADINIBG SPIY-V-Ielg
WQ usoIad | #ig unowy aleq aled BIg us2iad | Hig lunowy oney oney 13 W8219d | Qg lunowy INOH/ INCH/ H1Q tus0iad | giq unowy ayey AlinoH  eyey ApinoH uny/anoy
abesony abesany xogaJe x0gaJse4 1Bussed JBusseq
0z/6L 6L/8L 0Z/61 6L/81 0g/6L 61/81 0c/6) 6L/8L
6L0Z1das nuyL 610z 1das nuyi 610z 3das nuyy 610z 1des iy

uosuedwon soueULIONad d)e( O} JEIA

61/8L Ad O3 8L/LLAL
Jo13sIq uoneuodsuel) Aunos yoouwejiy



NMWCONNECTOR

Coordinating Committee Meeting
October 11, 2019
Tillamwok County Transportation District
3600 3 St
Tillamook, OR
10:00 am—2:00 pm

Teleconferenee Information
866/755-7677
Pin # 005939
Agenda
10:00— . .
10:05a | » Introductions Doug Pilant
2. Consent Calendar (Action Items)

4 September 13, 2019 Meeting Minutes
10:05— (Attached) Doug Pilant
10:15a 4 September 2019 Financial Report

4 Ridership Tracking (July 2019)

4 Calculating Average Passenger Miles Progress

3. NWOTA Standing Items
10115— 4 IGA Approvals Update Benton County
e 30a 4 Management Plan Approval Updates Benton/Columbia/SETD
' 4 Website Alert Implementation All

4 Travel Studio/Transportation Committee Jeff Hazen
10:30- 3. NW Connector Marketing Selena Barlow
12:00p 4+ Project Update
12:00— 4 1ch
12:30p
12:30— | 5. Website Trip Enhancements
1:00p 4 Draft RFP/Scope of Work Mary McArthur
;g(()); 6. NW~Connector Website Events/Trips All
1:30— 7. Other Business and Member Updates All
2:00p

Attachments:

September 13, 2019 Meeting Minutes September NWOTA Action Items

NWOTA meetings are open to the public and accommodations will be provided to persons with

disabilities. If a sign language interpreter is needed, please call Mary McArthur at 503.228.5565 at least 48 hours
prior to the meeting.

www.nwconnector.org

Dol sunkT Emtee
. -r6|. TRANSPORTATION
.4 DISTRICT

TRANSPORTATION




Oregon Transit Alliance (NWOTA)
Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes
September 13, 2019
Tillamook County Transportation District
Tillamook, OR

1. Introductions: Doug Pilant, Coordinating Committee Chair, opened the meeting. Meeting
attendees/teleconference participants included:
— Cynda Bruce—Lincoln County Transportation
— Jetf Hazen—Sunset Empire Transit District
— Doug Pilant—Tillamook County Transportation
— Lisa Scherf—Benton County Transit
- Todd Wood—Columbia County Rider
— Mark Bernard, Arla Miller, Ken Shonkwiler—ODOT .-
— Ryan Farncomb—Parametrics ' :
—  Scott Richmond—Jacobs Engineering Group (CH2M Hill
Excused:

2. Consent Calendar: Unanimously approved. (JH/CB)
4 August 9, 2019 Meeting Minutes—No changes.

August Financial Report—Received $12,000 in partner dues and TCTD paid full amount
of annual dues.

4
4+ July Ridership Performance Report—Mary:still needs to work with John Dreezen at
4+

Columbia County Rider. Qctober agenda.

Calculating Average Passenger Miles Progress—Now that Sunset has updated their
ridership number, they will get started on calculating average passenger miles. Lincoln
County’s average passenger miles went up from 13 to 19 because of the increase in riders
from north County. Reminder that Benton and Columbia and Sunset need to get their
average passenger miles caleulations done. Oetober agenda.

3. NWOTA Standing Items:

4 IGA Approval Updates—No changes from last month: Waiting for Benton County.
4+ Management Plan—Jeff will meet with Todd.

4 Website Alert Service—SETD and TCTD have both completed their trainings, Cynda will
get her training scheduled. Columbia County Rider uses flash alerts, which go straight to
their riders emails. Todd will follow up with Trillium regarding the applicability of the
new website alert.

4+ NW Connector Marketing—Selina Barlow has scheduled her NWConnector system trip
for early October. She will be riding the NWConnector on most of its routes. Mary has
sent her the marketing materials used in the last two years. A potential marketing option
will be information on the inside of the Lincoln County, Sunset Empire and Tillamook
County buses and shelters for downloading the transit app so riders can have real time
information on the status of their buses.

+ Travel Tourism Studio/Transportation Committee—Rack cards are going to go to
lodging and property managers in Cannon Beach providing visitor information on car-
free travel. Cannon Beach received a Transportation Growth Management (TGM) grant
to develop their Transportation System Plan (TSP). Sunset is going to see if there is a
way to draft in language for property managers regarding number of cars. Goal is a car-
free Cannon Beach, car-free rentals. Daily Astorian is going to write an article about Car-

NWOTA Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes (9-13-19) 1|Page

he



Free Cannon Beach. Potential opportunity to do tourism videos regarding
transportation access to NW Oregon. Trillium has a contract with Travel Oregon to look
at private transportation numbers. Next Friday, at the NW Coast Travel Network
meeting, there will be a panel discussion on transportation options. Jeff, Arla, Doug,
Mary and Ken will be on the panel.

4. Pedestrian Access Study

Originally planned to have 30% design of 24 stops. Since the project funding was awarded
in 2013, ODOT design thresholds have changed, and 30% design now is closer to concept
design. Net result is that some of the stops will need additional design'work before seeking
implementation funding. Blueprint for transit design for NW Oregon, as districts work with
developers that might be adding a transit stop or when seeking STIF funding,.

4 Scappoose at Havlik Rd/Hwy 30. Requires highway and rail right-of-way. Stop will
need a barrier between the road and rail. Will require a major signal rebuild process,
and likely require significant ODOT involvement.

St Helens at Gable Rd/Hwy 30. Stop includes grade changes.

St Helens at Gable Rd/Hwy 30 eastbound.

St Helens near Columbia Blvd/Hwy 30 eastbound. May not be a corresponding spot

across Hwy 30 that goes westbound.

Clatskanie is still an issue, to be looked at more in the future.

Knappa—Near Hillcrest Rd off Hwy 30, near the Chevron St. Well-sheltered stop off the

highway.

Warrenton—North of the Ensign Lane/Hwy 101 intersection. Straightforward and easy

to implement. Intersection is already ADA—implemented.

Gearhart—North of intersection at Pacific Way. Will be coordinated with Pacific Way

signal rework. Also if there is a road reconfiguration, the roadway footprint doesn’t

change, so the transit stop will stay in the same place.

Seaside—Ave A and'Hwy 101. Will be funded as part of the roadway improvements.

Rockaway Beach (Two stops on alternate sides of Hwy 101, near City Hall. Will also

facilitate access to the Salmonberry Trail (southbound). The City is okay with both stops,

as was the Salmonberry Trail group.

4+ Rockaway Beach—Two stops on alternate sides of Hwy 101 near the post office.
Northbound stop will require purchase of right-of-way. Southbound stop will connect
with Salmonberry Trail. Also includes a bike repair station.

4+ Hebo—Northbound Hwy 101 near S Hebo Lane. Right-of-way still needs to be surveyed
to resolve.

4 Cape Kiwanda—Cape Kiwanda Dr, south of Pelican Pub in Pacific City. Will need further
conversation with County Board of Commissioners, but no objections from community
from preliminary design.

4+ Newport North—Near Walmart parking lot off Hwy 101.

4+ Newport—A transfer point between the regional bus network and a local circulator which
serves Oregon Coast Community College. It is presently a flag stop on US 101. Relocate
to the west side of Ash Street just north of the intersections with SE 40t ADA access
may need to be revised

4+ Walport—Southbound NW Broadway St at Ray’s Market, near the intersection of
Highway 24 (Alsea Highway). Improvements are important to the community and is
well supported. Good supported and well-designed.

+ Philomath—Highway 34 near the section with 14t St. Elongating the existing stop,
providing a more formalized, noticeable shelter. May decide to add features, rather than
replace the existing shelter.

 F =+ e

*

NWOTA Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes (9-13-19) 2|Page



4 Philomath—Highway 34 (eastbound Applegate St) near the intersection with 11th St.
Another existing stop that will be enhanced. May not need a full expansion, may not
have a lot of riders waiting at the stop. Bike rack and trash receptacles are good. Better
signing is needed. Shared stop with the Philomath Connection

4+ North Albany—Two stops, north and southbound, Lewisburg/Granger Ave on OR g9. A
fairly congested intersection.

4+ Adair Village—Current stop is located on William R Carr Ave near the intersection with
Vandenburg Ave, at a convenience store in Adair Village. The proposed stop location is
located at Adair Village City Hall and Community Center in Adair Village. Stop is not
conveniently located for individuals with mobility difficulties, being an isolated stop.
Will need to be incorporated into Adair Village’s future planning.

Final booklet of all the stops will be completed. Good project, good for replicating across
the State. TCTD would have preferred to have Garibaldi included; but the originally
thinking was that the stops would be included in ODOT’s paving of Hwy 101 through
town. The paving hasn’t happened. Transit access project process would also be good
for looking at identifying and locating park and rides.

5. Website Trip Enhancements
4 Trip Planner Discretionary Grant—TCTD Board will be approving the contract next
Thursday. The size of the contract is large enough that NWOTA will need to go out for a
RFP. Mary will draft a Scope of Work for review at the October Board meeting. List on
ORPIN.
1. Trips/Events: Revised lists being worked on. Mary will coordinate and follow up on
discussion from August Board meeting:
6. NWConnector Website Events/Trips

Updating postponed until the Oetober Board meeting.

7. Other Business/Member Updates

4+ Benton County—Coast to Valley planning with Cynda and Mark, and have sketched a
solid service plan. Has also passed preliminary review with ODOT. Have an aging fleet
and may have to rent some vehicles. In the middle of hiring Lee’s replacement. Lee is
doing very well, all his follow ups have been clean. Rolled out STIP expansion, from
30,000 10:40,000 hours.

4+ Lincoln County—Lincoln and Benton have worked out an expanded Coast to Valley
route. Making connections with Amtrak, and other transit stops. Hired second
dispatcher. Working on pay.equity and district job descriptions. Getting ready to go to
RTAP conference, including procurement training.

4+ Columbia County—Working on STF implementation, with an October 7 rollout. MTR
has asked for more money because of insurance rates, which could result in their backing
out of the recently negotiating contract. Benton County uses the same contractor, and
has had some of the same experience.

4 Sunset Empire Transit District—Article in the Daily Astorian regarding comments made
by a former employee. Jeff is following up with an internal investigation. Looking to
wrap up HR personnel hiring. Working on Transportation Options for Lincoln County.
Taking a tour for this weekend’s transit summit.

4 Tillamook County—At end of August, Greyhound notified were moving stop out of bus
station, where TCTD does its layovers. For the interim, are laying over at Union Station.
Labor negotiations continue. Analyzing route deviations, and the level of deviations
occurring. City of Tillamook agreed to sale of the Transit Center to TCTD. With STF
expansion, will be providing service out to the Port of Tillamook Bay.

NWOTA Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes (9-13-19) 3|Page



4 ODOT: Arla—NEXT Renewables at Port Westward will likely need transit service
because the road is too narrow for the amount of expected traffic. Options being
considered: Park and ride, shuttle service. Need to work on funding.

4+ ODOT: Mark—Florence to Yachats now being run by Lane Council of Governments and
doing well.

4+ PTAC—STF/STIF Merger Committee. Todd and Lisa are on the committee. To date, the
committee has been working on what “Success would Look Like”:
— Management
-~ New concepts clear and easy to understand
—~ Projects
- Potential concepts

Next meeting on September 24" Qctober agenda

Recorded: Mary McArthur, Col-Pac EDD and NWOTA Coordinator

NWOTA Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes (9-13-19) 4|Page - 1)
)



1 :98ed soueLeA % 198png LA/M Hoday qOd A[UIUo
%VY6'v STT6V86T 00°000°71€ CLLOS ST €8°0TS°L SL°L009
%L0’S 00°061°9$ 00°061°6¢ 00°000°¢ 000 000
%000 00°061°9S 00°061°9$ 000 000 00°0
2007001 000 00°000°€ 007000°€ 000 0070
%16 STTOETHT 00°018¥ST SLLOSTI £8°0TS°L SL'L009
%0070 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°0 L9'91¥ 000
%0070 007095491 00°09S 491 000 000 000
%0070 00°00S"LY 00°00S LY 000 £€'856'€ 00°0
%9998 00°000°( 00°005°L 00°005°9 00'$29 000
%E0FT STT66°81 00°000°5 SL'LOO'9 £€°€80°C $L°L00°9
%00°0 00°0$T°S 00°0$T°S 000 0S°LEY 000
%9t L1 (00°000°8L2) 00000V 1€ 00°000°9€ 000 00700071
%000 (00°000°6¥ 1) 00°000°6¥1 000 000 000
%00°001 000 00°000°C1 00°000°CI 000 000
2%00°0S (00°000°2) 00°000°8% 007000+ 00°0 00°000°C1
%00°0 (00000°501) 00°000°501 00°0 000 000
9%SGT JDUBLIB A 123png w10 [emoy 198png polad [emOy poLdJ
uowvsm _SOH Jea A EU.EZU EQEBU EO.ESU

6102/0€/6 YSNONL, 6107/1/6 WOL]

JuLWRleR)S [BIOURUL]

LIS uoneyiodsued f, Juno)) yoowe|y,

0816
ocleé

0Tes
I61¢
061¢
0I1¢
101¢
00I1¢

816¥
L6V
ceey
00s¢€

INd 86:85:€0 61/6/01 -91ed

sasuadxq [e10.
SI9JSURI], [EI0],
reg pun,j Surpuy parerrdorddeun
pun, [eIouar) 0} 1JSuel],
SI9JSuBI],
SIOIAIIS PUB S[BLIAIBIA] [BI0],
Suiutel] 29 [9ABIL
ud1S9(1-9Y AMUSGIM
FunayIe
Q0UBUDJUIBIA 2USGIM
yoddng aanenSIUTLIPY
SAOIAISS [BUOISSAJOI]
SODIAIOS PUE S[RLIDIBIA
sasuadxyg

$90.IN0S3Y [RIOL

pun,[ JILS WO J9JSuBL],
pun,j [eIouUar) Wol,] Iojsuel]
OIEIN JU0D) Jauled VIOMN
eude) Suryrom

$92IN0SAY



NWOTA Action Items
September 2019

_ Action Items: Assignments’
IGA Mary to get copies of | Lincoln Co (V) (V)
Get approved by each partner signed IGA’s from Tillamook (V)
commission/board. each partner for the Columbia Co (V)
file SETD (V)
Management Plan Mary—Send out Plan
Get approved by each partner and most current )

commission/board

Action Plan

Benton
Columbia
Sunset Empire

Mary—Get approval
documentation from
each partner

Lincoln (V)
Tillamook (V)

Management Plan Updates
Mobile app for NW Connector

Transit language for Comp Plans and TSPs
Purchase rides online
Reserve a seat online

Website Events/Trip Planner/Newsletter
Draft RFP/Scope of Work

Mary

October Board Mig

Bike and Ride Info on Website

Add instructions/video on how to use the bike
rack

Jeff to provide the
video and language

Mary to add to website

In Progress

2019—2020 NWConnector Marketing

Selina Barlow to test
travel the
NWConnector system

Report—October
Board meeting

NW Connector Ridership
Update performance methodology assumptions

Compare monthly ridership year-to-year

Partners do
calculations

SETD, Lincoln,
Columbia ridership
Mary to meet with
Jolhn Dreeszen

Tillamook (V)
Lineoln (V)

Benton (V)
Tillamook (V)

Sunset (V)

NW Connector Holidays Policy (Lincoln drop 1,
TCTD add 3 days)

Doug/Cynda

Adding Connector Partners—Meet with
Washington County initially

NWConnector Trips and Events

Mary to coordinate

October Board Mg

Transportation Options Consider adding a TO | NW Connector follow
page to NWConnector | onto Oregon’s July
Website Drive less Connect
promotion
NWOTA Action Plan Items Progress (September 2019) 1|Page



Action Items Assignment's;' Progress
NW Connector
highway signs
displaying website
info
[ | Transit App Alerts Trillium train partners | Sunset/Tillamook v
[] | Updated Visitor Passes Include in Marketing

NWOTA Action Plan Items Progress (September 2019)



Workshop 10/17/2019
Tillamook County Transportation District T
Board of Directors Workshop /
Thursday, October 17, 2019 — 5:00PM
Transportation Building
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, OR
Meeting Minutes

1. Call to Order: Board Chair Judy Riggs called the meeting to order at 5:05pm
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Roll Call:

Present

TCTD Board of Directors

Judy Riggs, Board Chair

Marty Holm, Vice Chair

Gary Hanenkrat, Director

Jim Huffman, Secretary

Jackie Edwards, Director

Melissa Carlson-Swanson, Director
Linda Adler, Treasurer

TCTD Staff

Doug Pilant, General Manager

Brent Olson, Superintendent

Tabatha Welch, Accounting Specialist

Clayton Norrbom, Operations Coordinator
Cathy Bond, NW Rides Supervisor/Board Clerk

Absent
None.

Guest
John Stein, SDAO/SDIS
Bill Anderson, SDAO/SDIS
4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda: None.

5. Public & Guest Comments: None.

ACTION ITEMS

6. Motion to Approve the Minutes of September 19, 2019 Regular Board Meetings

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

1



Workshop 10/17/2019

Motion by Director Holm to adopt the Consent Calendar. Motion Seconded by Director

Edwards. Board Chair Judy Riggs called for further discussion; followed by none, she
called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Huffman,

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Judy Riggs.

7. Review TCTD 2013-2015 Business Plan
GM Doug Pilant gave an overview of all current District plans the Board.
8. SDIS Consultant Bill Anderson — SWOT Analysis

Bill Anderson and John Stein worked with the Board and staff on a group activity and
SWOT analysis.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

9. Staff Comments/Concerns. None.
10. Board of Directors Comments/Concerns. None.
Adjournment: Board Chair Riggs adjourned the meeting at 8:00pm.

These minutes approved this 24" day of October 2019.
ATTEST:

Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

2

OJ

|
NI\



TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT POLICY

Policy: Business Credit Card Policy Number: 3

Adopted by the Board of Directors on January 15, 2009
Previous Revised: April 20, 2017 Pages: 1
Effective Date: October 25, 2019

Purpose: TCTD credit card spending authority.

Credit Limit: The authorized credit card limit is $10,000.

Approved User(s): The General Manager is the primary designated credit card
holder. The General Manager may designate additional credit card users at his
or her discretion.

Personal Use: Personal use of the District's Credit Cards is prohibited.

Receipts: Receipts must be turned into the finance department upon request.
The finance department will reconcile the monthly statement and provide a
monthly report to the Board.

General: In the event of a lost or stolen credit card, the user must report to the
financial Institution and General Manager immediately upon discovery of loss.

Separation: Upon separation of employment, an authorized credit card user
must return the card to the District along with a financial reconciliation of all
expenditures prior to departing.

TCTD Business Credit Card Policy
CERTIFICATE OF RECEIPT

l, , certify that | have
received a copy of the TCTD Business Credit Card Policy dated October 25,
2019. | understand that it is my responsibility to read and ask questions if
necessary, regarding the Policy. | accept responsibility for understanding and
complying with the District's policies.

Employee Signature Date




TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT POLICY

Policy: Business Credit Card Policy Number: 3

Adopted by the Board of Directors on January 15, 2009

Last Revised: April 20, 2017 Pages: 2

Purpose: This policy establishes procedures for the Board to approve
authorized credit card users when using the District's Credit Card for business
purchases and necessities.

Approved User: The General Manager, Operations Superintendent, HR
Specialist and Accounting Specialist are the only Board authorized users of the
District's Credit Card. Credit Cards will be issued in the names of the persons
holding those positions, as well as the District's name. The General Manager
may delegate use of the Credit Card at his or her discretion. District financial
policy must be adhered to, including the purchase order policy and
documentation.

Credit Card Limit: The limit for each authorized use of the credit card shall be
as follows:

General Manager - $5,000.00

Operations Superintendent - $2,000.00

HR Specialist — $1,500.00

Accounting Specialist - $1,500.00.

Personal Use: Personal use of the District's Credit Cards is not allowed.

Receipts: When purchases are made be they via purchase order, for business
meals, or travel, a receipt must be turned into the Accounting Specialists as soon
as practicable, but no more than five (5) business days from occurrence or upon
return to the office. Receipts should include the credit card slip as well as the
receipt.

Monthly Reconciliation: The Accounting Specialists will reconcile the monthly
statement and provide a monthly report to the Board of all credit card purchases.

General: In the event of a lost or stolen credit card, the user must report to the
Financial Institution, Board Chair and the General Manager immediately upon
discovery of loss.

Misuse: The financial limitations set by the Board regarding purchasing
authority must be followed. The Board of Directors must approve anything over
the above-noted limits. Any misuse of the District’'s credit cards will not be
tolerated. Misuse may result in discipline up to, and including, termination.




Separation: Upon separation of an authorized credit card user, the card will be
returned to the District, along with a financial reconciliation of all expenditures
before departing. The Board Chair will be notified of the same.



For Board Meeting of October 24, 2019
Agenda ltem # 19

MEMO TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: DOUG PILANT, GENERAL MANAGER D"‘H’&/
SUBJECT: CLOVERDALE MULTIMODAL FACILITY AND WAYSIDE
Issue

Shall the Board adopt and ratify the Intergovernmental Agreement between Tillamook
County and the District to pursue the development of a multimodal transit facility and
wayside in Cloverdale?

Background and Findings

1.  The current Cloverdale bus stop is located on a blind corner along Highway 101
resulting in drivers and passengers negotiating informal alternative bus stop
locations to board and alight the bus. This practice results in miscommunication
causing passengers and drivers to experience uncertainty, which resuits in
unreliable service.

2. In October 2011 the District entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement with
Tillamook County to develop a multimodal transit facility and Wayside in
Cloverdale. Please see Attachment A.

3. Following a series of storms in the winter of 2015-16, a large portion of the wayside
property’s riverbank collapsed into the Nestucca River and washed away causing a
re-design of the Cloverdale Wayside.

4. Tillamook County and the District have contemplated a modified scope of work that
converts the County’s Public Works shop located in Cloverdale to be repurposed
into a multimodal transit facility and wayside.

5.  The District and Tillamook County desire to work together to create a mutually
beneficial project by collaborating to explore strategies to plan, design, finance,
implement, and maintain the project and determine project obligations as the
project progresses.

6. Tillamook County has prepared a new Intergovernmental Agreement (see
Attachment B) between the County and District outlining the terms to re-establish a
partnership to explore strategies that lead to the establishment of a multimodal
transit facility and wayside in Cloverdale.

Recommendation

Staff recommends the Board adopt the Intergovernmental Agreement between the
District and Tillamook County to develop a project that is mutually beneficial to both
TCTD and Tillamook County.

(N



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

In the Matter of Authorizing

and Ratifying an Intergovernmental
Agreement (IGA) between TCTD
and Tillamook County

RESOLUTION NO. 19-34

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District owns and operates a
regional public transportation system network of buses that serve communities within and
without Tillamook County and that represents vital links to other public transportation
system networks in northwest Oregon; and

WHEREAS, Tillamook County and the District ratified an Intergovernmental
Agreement in October 2011 to cooperate in a project to provide a multimodal transit facility
at the Noble Wayside in Cloverdale; and

WHEREAS, during a series of winter storms in late 2015 and early 2016 a large
portion of the Wayside's riverbank property washed away into the Nestucca River
resulting in the Noble Wayside project location no longer being viable; and

WHEREAS, Tillamook County and the District have contemplated a modified
scope of work that converts the County’s Public Works shop located in Cloverdale to be
repurposed into a multimodal transit facility and wayside; and

WHEREAS, the District and Tillamook County desires to work together and
collaborate to explore strategies to plan, design, finance, implement, and maintain the
project and determine the project obligations as the Cloverdale project progresses.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors:

Adopts and ratifies the Intergovernmental Agreement between the District and
Tillamook County to jointly pursue a multimodal transit facility and Wayside in Cloverdale.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 24" day of October 2019.

ATTEST:

By: By:
Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager




Attachment A /

2 e 24
A s 114maZ43 FILED
&Q \,X' COUNTY COURT JOURNA! 3.0 p s

poT 1 7 ?Oc
- g 7
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT ASTL OE

COURTY CLERK
This Agreement is made and entered into, in duplicate originals, this 5th day of October, 2011, by
and between Tillamook County, a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereinafter referred
to as "COUNTY" and the Tillamook County Transportation District, an Oregon Special District,
hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT.”

RECITALS

Whereas, COUNTY is the owner of certain parcels of land within the unincorporated community
of Cloverdale, consisting of a county park parcel known as the Noble Wayside and an additional
parcel previously used as a fire station by the Nestucca Fire District, but no longer needed for fire
station purposes, said parcels collectively hereinafter referred to as “COUNTY PARCELS.”

Whereas, DISTRICT owns and operates a public transportation network of buses that serve
communities within and without Tillamook County and that represents a vital link to other public
transportation networks in northwest Oregon; and

Whereas, COUNTY and DISTRICT desire to cooperate in a project involving the COUNTY
PARCELS to provide a multimodal link within the broader public transportation network in
northwest Oregon.

WITNESSETH

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED by and between the parties as follows: the mutual
promises of each party are given in exchange and as consideration for the promises of the other

party.
Section 1.0 COUNTY’S RIGHTS DUTIES AND AUTHORITIES

1.1 COUNTY will be the grant applicant in the October 2011 ODOT Flex Funds
Program to assist with funding the construction of a multimodal hub that will link
south Tillamook County to the regional public transportation networks of northwest
Oregon, hereinafier “the Project.”

1.2 COUNTY will make its COUNTY PARCELS available for the Project as follows:

1.2.1 The Noble Wayside will include a bus shelter, restrooms, bicycle racks and
parking for transit riders as more particularly shown on the attached Exhibit
A, incorporated herein by reference.

1.2.2 The former fire station lot will be made available to DISTRICT for the
placement of its bus shelter for serving north-bound buses.

1.2.3 COUNTY will execute the required agreements with DISTRICT for the

Page 1 of 11 - INTERGOVENMENTAL AGREEMENT - TILLAMOQK COUNTY AND
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT




1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

Section 2.0

2.1

22

2.3

2.4

Section 3.0

3.1

Section 4.0

4.1

placement of the bus shelters.

If the ODOT Flex Funds Grant is awarded, COUNTY will provide grant
administration and closeout as well as construction management and oversight.

COUNTY will work with DISTRICT in the final design for the Project including the
alignment and Placement of the bus shelters.

Except as set forth in paragraph 2.3, COUNTY and the Pacific City — Nestucca
Valley Chamber of Commerce will provide the balance of matching funds required
for the ODOT Flex Funds Grant.

Upon completion of the Project, and except as set forth in paragraph 2.4, the
Pacific City — Nestucca Valley Chamber of Commerce will provide ongoing repair
and maintenance of the facilities as more particularly described in the attached
Exhibit B License Agreement.

DISTRICT'S RIGHTS, DUTIES AND AUTHORITIES

DISTRICT will cooperate with COUNTY in the preparation of the October 2011
ODOT Flex Funds Grant application.

To the extent required by law, DISTRICT will perform a NEPA review or other
environmental assessment for the Project.

DISTRICT will make available for the Project, two (2) bus shelters and such staff
time as might be required for its involvement in the Project. The provision of these
items will constitute DISTRICT’s sole contribution to the Project. No other or
additional cash or match will be provided by DISTRICT.

Upon completion of the Project, DISTRICT will provide continuing repair and
maintenance solely to its bus shelters, which shall continue to remain the property
of DISTRICT. All other ongoing maintenance and repair for the facilities will be as
set forth in paragraph 1.6 of this Agreement.

INSURANCE

Each party agrees to maintain insurance sufficient to meet sums specified by ORS
30.272 and 30.273.

LIABILITY; INDEMNIFICATION

Each party shall indemnify and hold harmiess the other party from al | claims, costs,
damages, or expenses of any kind, including attorneys' fees and other costs and
expenses of litigation, for personal or property damage arising out of that party's
performance required by this intergovernmental agreement. It is the intent of this
section that each party assumes any and all liability for its respective torts, errors
and omissions.

Page 2 of 11 - INTERGOVENMENTAL AGREEMENT - TILLAMOOK COUNTY AND
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Lt >~




Section 5.0
51
Section 6.0

6.1

Section 7.0

7.1

7.2

Section 8.0

8.1

8.2

8.3

EFFECTIVE DATE

This Agreement shall take effect on October 20, 2011.

TERM

The term of this Agreement shall be from the date upon which it is fully executed by
the parties and continue in force and effect until terminated pursuant to Section 7.0
of this Agreement.

TERMINATION
This Agreement may be terminated when:

Without Notice

7.1.1 The parties mutually consent to termination in writing.

With Notice

7.2.1 Any party breaches any duty, term or condition of this Agreement.

7.2.2 Either party commits a fraud or misrepresentation upon the other party.

7.2.3 Either party gives thirty (30) days notice.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

WAIVER; MODIFICATION

8.1.1 Failure by either party to enforce any provision of this Agreement does not
constitute a party’s continuing waiver of that provision , any other provision
or of the entire Agreement. The rights and duties under this Agreement shall

not be modified, delegated, transferred or assigned, except upon the written-
signed consent of both parties.

ATTORNEYS' FEES

8.2.1 Atftorney fees, costs and disbursements necessary to enforce this
Agreement through mediation, arbitration and/or litigation, including appeals,
shall be awarded to the prevailing party, unless otherwise specified herein or
agreed.

LEGAL REPRESENTATION
8.3.1 In entering into this Agreement, each party has relied solely upon the advice

of their own attorney. Each party has had the opportunity to consult with
counsel or now waives that right. Each party represents and warrants to the

Page 3 of 11 - INTERGOVENMENTAL AGREEMENT - TILLAMOOK COUNTY AND

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT




84

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

other that they are fully satisfied with the representation received from their
respective attorneys.

NOTICES

8.4.1 Any notice required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and
deemed given when:
8.4.1.1 actually delivered, or
8412 three (3) days after deposit in United States certified mail,
postage prepaid, addressed to the other party at their last known
address.

LANGUAGE

8.5.1 The headings of the Agreement paragraphs are intended for information only
and shall not be used to interpret paragraph contents. All masculine,
feminine and neuter genders are interchangeable. All singular and plural
nouns are interchangeable, unless the context requires otherwise.

INTEGRATION

8.6.1 This Agreement supersedes all prior oral or written Agreements between
DISTRICT and COUNTY regarding this matter. It represents the entire
Agreement between the parties. Time is of the essence in all terms,
provisions, covenants and conditions in this Agreement.

SAVINGS

8.7.1 Should any clause or section of this Agreement be declared by a Court to be
void or voidable, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force
and effect.

JURISDICTION; LAW
8.8.1 This Agreement is executed in the State of Oregon and is subject to

Tillamook County and Oregon law and jurisdiction. Venue shall be in
Tillamook County, Oregon, unless otherwise agreed by the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, COUNTY and the DISTRICT have executed this Agreement on the
date first above written.

11117
11711
i

Page 4 of 11 - INTERGOVENMENTAL AGREEMENT - TILLAMOOK COUNTY AND
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT




.
Dated this ZZ"aay of @ ectober, 2011

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
FOR TILLAMOOK COUNTY, OREGON

Aye Nay  Absent/Abstain

Charles J-Hutliman, Chair
l W""Lv\ [ /

Tim Josi, Vice-Ghair
Mark Labhart, Commissioner

ATTEST: Tassi O'Neil, APPROVED AS TO FORM:
County Clerk : -

BY: ﬁa&# L
Specnal Deputy William K..Sargent, County Counse!

_‘A.h Bl 1Y Ny

- “\55’004535\.‘
o voa Wi

N

il :
Dated this(‘/ dayof Scteober 20

A S SR

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION D

Gl

5 \'j r 3 '
"_d/&‘ W /// !‘E”\ri/%
Robert J. Kenny vy
Interim General Manager

Marty }olm ;)

Secretary

T men

Page 5 of 11 - INTERGOVENMENTAL AGREEMENT - TILLAMOOK COUNTY AND
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT




SITE PLAN FOR:
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT AND vt
PACIFIC CITY-NESTUCCA VALLEY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE et ‘??qfé‘
IN i0TS 3 TrRU 1C, BLOCK &, PLAT GF 2ARK ADD ™ ON, LOCATED 1M TAE - :i
NI1/4 SEV/4 SZCTION 22, T 4 5, R 10 % W4, TILAMCOX CC. GR # V=207 '\
UCIDEER &, 2311 I
v > R LARD S REGISTERED
SR §Z.L§§R‘eis Rb. Sane R
?ﬁgr)g:sscir:ésgk 97135-0333 s""?“” W Kallice
[ m— !
Fepreaey 11980
DCUGLAS HuKELLOW
B bt TR

M2 ELZVATION DAT.M FOR THIS SJRYIY WAS DERNFT TROM

Ak CRE( TA™Z FIGHWAY JEPARTMCNT SRASS CAF SET
LOCATED ON "HE NORTH SDZ OF H GHWAY
T AT 1LAMOOK COUNTY PJ3|C WCRKS SLILAWG
. 42 19307 ELIVATION=25 17 AGVD'29

IH COAC]

TRACT -JES % FI4 A FEVA 7LOGC ZCAE “46°
SE TLOOB C_EVATEN FOR THE SUBJECT TRACT IS 260
HGVE'22 - 345ED LPON FEMA FIRM MO 411196 D3 2%

VER
~E s‘fi ] E.'[:l‘ .

—

S2Cup cuver™|
HLET 18 =12.37
1

¥ x>

vt 9l




300K ii{}l'x"(}f /lg

COUNTY COURT JOURNAL

LICENSE AGREEMENT - 22%%

This Agreement is made and entered into, in duplicate originals, by and between
Tillamook County, a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, acting by and through
its Board of Commissioners, hereafter "County” and the Pacific-City Nestucca Valley
Chamber of Commerce, an Oregon non-profit corporation, and the Cloverdale
Committee, acting by and through its Board of Directors, hereafter " icensee".

RECITALS

Where as County is the owner of certain real property in Cloverdale, hereafter referred
to as "Tract A", as more particularly described on the attached Exhibit "A", incorporated

herein by reference.

Whereas, County is acquiring under a Sale Agreement and Receipt for Earnest Money,
certain additional real property in Cloverdale, hereafter referred to as "Tract B", as more
particularly described on the attached Exhibit "A",

Whereas, upon the acquisition of Tract B, on or before February 1, 2008, County
intends to dedicate and set aside by Board Order both Tracts A & B as a County Park

and Recreation Area.

Whereas, Licensee desires to develop, manage and operate Tracts A & B as a park and
recreation area to include a public restroom and wayside and also desires to begin
preliminary work on development plans for the Tracts as well as site work on Tract A at

this time.

Whereas, County is willing to grant a license for such purposes to Licensee, according
to the terms, covenants and conditions as foliows:

The mutual promises of each are given in exchange and as consideration for, the
promises of the other.

COUNTY AND LICENSEE MUTUALLY COVENANT AND AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1. UUpon execution of this Agreement by both parties, County grants its permission
to Licensee to use the herein described Tract A as set forth in this Agreement.
Effective upon the recording of its Deed of Acquisition, County hereby grants its
permission to Licensee to use the herein described Tract B as set forth in this

Agreement.

LICENSE AGREEMENT - Tillamook County and Nestucca Valley Chamber of Commerce (Nable

Wayside)
Page 1 of &

Page 6 of 11 - INTERGOVENMENTAL AGREEMENT - TILLAMOOK COUNTY AND

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION-BHETRIGT




—EXHIBITB.

2. USE BY LICENSEE

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

26

2.7

Licensee may, at Licensee's sale expense, use the hereinabove described
real property for public park, recreation and related purposes, including
but not limited to, a wayside, picnic area and the construction and
maintenance of public restrooms.

Prior to undertaking any use of the property which would alter or modify
soils, vegetation or land features or involve the planting of trees or other
plant material, Licehsee shall first submit & written plan to the County's
Parks Director to secure wrilten approval of the project.

In conducting its activities and uses, Licensee shall perfarm all reasonably
necessary measures to protect adjoining areas, streams, roads and
landowners.

Licensee shall obtain and maintain all Federal, State and County permits
and licenses required for the lawful operations of Licensee's activities and
uses.

Licensee at all times, shall observe and comply with all Federal, State,
County and local laws, ordinances and regulations which in any manner
affect the activities of Licensee under this Agreement.

County shall at all times be allowed access to all parts of Licensee's
operations on the premises. licensee or its designated representatives
shalt furnish such information and assistance as may be required to
County to make complete and detailed inspections.

County will assist Licensee in procuring grants for park development by
providing review and comment on Licensee's grant applications and by
serving as grant sponsor when needed to meet eligibility requirements.

3, INSURANCE, LIABILITY

31

3.2

Licensee shali provide a certificate of coverage at the time of execution of
this Agreement, indicating proof of insurance coverage with limits of not
less than One Hundred Thousand ($100,000) Dollars property damage
per ctaimant, Two Hundred Thousand ($200,000) Dollars all other claims
per claimant and Five Hundred Thousand ($500,000) Dollars all ctaims.
Such insurance shall be evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance provided
to the County, indicating coverages, limits and effective dates, by an
insurance company licensed to do business in the State of OQregon. Also
an endorsement shall be issued by the company showing County as an
additional insured and containing a thirty (30) day Notice of Canceilation
provision.

Except as otherwise expressly provided herein and except for purposes of
the Oregon Tart Claims Act, ORS 30.285, Licensee shall not be
considered as an agent of County.

LICENSE AGREEMENT — Tillamook County and Nestucca Valley Chamber of Commerce (Noble

Wayside)
Page 2 of 6

Page 7 of 11 - INTERGOVENMENTAL AGREEMENT - TILLAMOOK COUNTY AND

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

y ¢




3.3 Licensee shall indemnify and hold harmless County, its officers, agents
and employees from any claims, liabilities, demands, damages, actions or
proceedings arising from or relating to the negligence of Licensee in
connection with its activities or use of the said Tracts. Licensee shall be
deemed an agent of Caunty for the sole purposes of tort liability pursuant
to the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.265.

4, VIOLATIONS OF AGREEMENT

4.1 W Licensee violates any of the provisions of this Agreement, County may,
after giving written notice, suspend any further operations of Licensee
under this Agreement, except such operation as may he necessary {0
remedy any violations.

42  |f Licensee fails to remedy any of the violations of this Agreement within
ten (10) days after receipt of the suspension notice given under this
section, the County may, by written notice, cancel this Agreement.

5. TERM

51  The term of this license shall be from the date upon which it is fully
executed by the parties to December 31, 2015, unless sooner terminated
pursuant to the provisions of paragraph 10 of this Agreement.

8. SCOPE OF USE

6.1  Licensee agrees that its privileges under this Agreement are personal,
non-exclusive, revocable and non-transferable by assignment, sub-ficense
or operation of law. County has title to the above-described real property.
Licensee will never assail or resist said title or claim any interest or estate
whatever in said real property by virtue of this Agreament or the exercise
of its privileges given. County shall not be restricted in its use of such real
property or adjacent lands, except as herein provided.

7. TERMINATION
This Agreement and license shall terminate:

7.1 Upon the request of County or Licensee, after giving the other party thirty
(30) days advance notice in writing; or
7.2 In accordance with Section 4 for failure of Licensee to correct a violation of

this Agreement.
7.3 County's right of termination may be exercised regardless of the fact that
Licensee has expended money in its use under this license Agreemert.

LICENSE AGREEMENT ~ Tillamook County and Nestucca Valley Chamber of Commerce (Noble
Wayside)
Page 3 of 6

Page 8 of 11 - INTERGOVENMENTAL AGREEMENT - TILLAMOOK COUNTY AND

——EXHIBIT-B -

TILLAMQOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT -




S — EXHIBITB -

8. GENERAL PROVISIONS

8.1  WAIVER; MODIFICATION
Failure by County to enforce any provision of this Agreement does not
constitute County's continuing waiver of that provision, any other provision
or of the entire Agreement. The rights and duties under this Agreement
shall not be modified, delegated, transferred or assigned, except upon the
written-signed consent of both parties.
8.2 ATTORNEYS' FEES
Attorney fees, costs and disbursements necessary to enforce this
Agreement through mediation, arbitration and/or litigation, including
appeals, shall be awarded to the prevailing party, unless otherwise
specified herein or agreed.
i
i,
11177

LICENSE AGREEMENT -~ Tillamook County and Nestucca Valley Chamber of Commerce (Noble

VWayside)
Page 4 of 6

Page 9 of 11 - INTERGOVENMENTAL AGREEMENT - TILLAMOOK COUNTY AND ’
TILLAMOOK COUNTY. TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT e .




N
Z

8.3 LEGAL REPRESENTATION

In entering into this Agreement, each party has relied solely upon the
advice of their own attorney. Each party has had the opportunity to
consult with counsel or now waives that right. Each party represents and
warrants to the other that they are fully satisfied with the representation

received from their respective attornays.

T

DATED this 24 day of _ 22

[—

12"@{.‘

Pacific City-Nestucca Valley Chamber of Commerce

Bill Goodman, President

DATED this 3 dayof Oty 287 .
Cloverdale Committee Pacific City-Nestucca Valley Chamber of Commerce

YM, g
JohrVGrig‘g%CgEirman

DATED this 3/ day of (D s #=fus.  Z007.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
FOR TILLAMOOK COUNTY, OREGON

Yy ok 2 allet

Mark Lfabhart, Chdir

[ e /(A—‘

Tim Josi, Cormmissioiter

ATTEST: Tassi O’Neil, County Clerk

By: ?Mg o gﬁ?ﬁ
pecial Deputy

Aye Nay Abstain/Absent

LIy
'/ / sy PRET Sy
e A BT " vp, N
# \\\- e T 2 0* \‘
oo . fa, TN
7 it eerre R
oLl .t ., o
F xS RN
(/ 7 ey T _ N% r@ol
§ I.' l (IRIL R Yy
; — 3 P teewd s
(T | I:/: :qx;
] [
r’ ': LA S | i .t‘ :u, 2,
1 .
- . ' P l:b. ;
Sagun? -
‘-/ I'ﬂ ‘o ! ‘Q =
2

APPROVEDAS TO FORM:
Uv\/'\-— %

AR
William K. Bargent, County Counsel

LICENSE AGREEMENT ~ Tillamook County and Nestucca Valley Chamber of Commerce (Noble

Wayside)
Page § of &

Page 10 of 11 - INTERGOVENMENTAL AGREEMENT - TILLAMOOK COUNTY AND

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT




_EXHIBITB___

EXHIBIT'A'

TRACTA

That part of the SE % lying South of the Big Nestucca River East of Block 1, Park
Addition to Cloverdale and North of US Hwy #101

and

Lots 1, 2, and 3, Block 2, CLOVERDALE, Tiltlamook County, Cregon

and

Lot 4, Block 2, CLOVERDALE, in Tillamook County, Oregon, according to the official
plat thereof, recorded in Baok 5, Page 118, and corrected by instrument recorded in
Book 39, Page 299, Deed Records of Tillamook County, Oregon.

TRACTB

Lot 5, Block 2, CLOVERDALE, in Tillamook County, Oregon, according to the official
plat thereof, recorded in Book 5, Page 118, and corrected by instrument recorded in
Book 39, Page 299, Deed Records of Tillamook County, Oregon.

ALSO the East 52 feet of Lot 6, Block 2, CLOVERDALE, according to the official plat
thereof, recarded in Book 5, Page 118, and corrected by instrument recorded in Book
39, Page 299, Deed Records of Tillamook County, Oregon, said East 52 feet being that
portion of said Lot 6 which fies East of the East line of that parcel conveyed to Verner
H. Knuth, et ux, by instrument recorded August 31, 1978, in Book 248, Page 695, Dead
Records, Tillamook County, Oregon.

LICENSE AGREEMENT - Tillamook County and Nestucca Valley Chamber of Commerce (Noble
Wayside)
Page 6 of 6

Page 11 of 11 - INTERGOVENMENTAL AGREEMENT - TILLAMOOK COUNTY AND

TTLLAMUOR &




Attachment B

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
between
TILLAMOOK COUNTY and the TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

This Agreement is made and entered into, in duplicate originals, this ___ day of 2019,
by and between Tillamook County, a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereinafter referred to
as "COUNTY" and the Tillamook County Transportation District, an Oregon Special District, hereinafter
referred to as "DISTRICT."

RECITALS

Whereas, COUNTY is the owner of a certain parcel of land, hereinafter referred to as “County Parcel”,
located at Township 4 South, Range 10 West, Section 22DC, Tax Lot 700 within the unincorporated
community of Cloverdale. The parcel is occupied by Tillamook County Public Works to support operations
in south Tillamook County.

Whereas, DISTRICT owns and operates a public transportation network of buses that serve communities
within and outside of Tillamook County and that represents a vital link to other public transportation
networks in northwest Oregon.

Whereas, COUNTY and DISTRICT desire to cooperate in a project, hereinafter “Project”, involving the
County Parcel to provide a multimodal link within the broader public transportation network in northwest
Oregon.

Whereas, COUNTY and DISTRICT executed and Intergovernmental Agreement on October 5, 2011 to
establish the roles and responsibilities for the Project.

Whereas, on June 20, 2012, COUNTY was awarded $260,000 from the Oregon Department of
Transportation (ODOT) Flexible Funds Program for preliminary engineering and right of way phases of the
Project. COUNTY and ODOT executed Local Agency Agreement No. 28474, which expires June 21, 2022.

Whereas, on May 13, 2016, COUNTY was awarded $703,663 from the ODOT Multimodal Transportation
Enhance Program for construction of the Project. COUNTY and ODOT execute Local Agency Agreement
No. 30978, which expires May 14, 2026. The full award amount is available.

Whereas, preliminary engineering designs have been developed using Agreement No. 28474 funds and
there is a remaining balance of approximately $90,000. The COUNTY and the DISTRICT do not support
the preliminary design and desire to modify the scope.

Whereas, the modified Project scope contemplates converting the COUNTY Public Works shop located on
the County Parcel to a transit center and wayside.

Whereas, the parties are committed to exploring strategies to plan, design, finance, implement, and

maintain the Project. This commitment does not obligate either party as the responsible party for any
Project strategies or outcomes. Obligations will be determined by the parties as the Project progresses.

WITNESSETH

Page 1 of 5 - INTERGOVENMENTAL AGREEMENT (/q ,;
TILLAMOOK COUNTY AND TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT | )



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
between

TILLAMOOK COUNTY and the TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED by and between the parties as follows: the mutual promises of
each party are given in exchange and as consideration for the promises of the other party.

Section 1.0

11

1.2

13

14

Section 2.0

2.1

Section 3.0

3.1

Section 4.0

4.1

Section 5.0

51

Section 6.0

6.1

COUNTY'S RIGHTS, DUTIES, AND AUTHORITIES

COUNTY will collaborate with the DISTRICT on all project discussions and decision-making,
including, but not limited to, public outreach, fundraising, real property negotiations,
engineering design, permitting, contracting, construction, and long-term maintenance.

COUNTY will provide overall project management.

COUNTY will provide grant administration of Local Agency Agreements No. 28474 and No.
30978.

COUNTY will make its County Parcel available for the Project.

DISTRICT'S RIGHTS, DUTIES, AND AUTHORITIES

DISTRICT will coflaborate with the COUNTY on all project discussions and decision-making,
including, but not limited to, public outreach, fundraising, real property negotiations,
engineering design, permitting, contracting, construction, and long-term maintenance.

INSURANCE

Each party agrees to maintain insurance sufficient to meet sums specified by ORS 30.272
and 30.273.

LIABILITY; INDEMNIFICATION

Each party shall indemnify and hold harmless the other party from all claims, costs,
damages, or expenses of any kind, including attorneys' fees and other costs and expenses
of litigation, for personal or property damage arising out of that party's performance
required by this Agreement. It is the intent of this section that each party assumes any
and all liability for its respective torts, errors and omissions.

EFFECTIVE DATE

This Agreement shall take effect on XXXXXXX, 2019.

TERM

The term of this Agreement shall be from the date upon which it is fully executed by the
parties and continue in force and effect until terminated pursuant to Section 7.0 of this
Agreement.

Page 2 of 5 - INTERGOVENMENTAL AGREEMENT
TILLAMOOK COUNTY AND TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

—\
s, Vi



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
between

TILLAMOOK COUNTY and the TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Section 7.0

7.1

7.2

Section 8.0

8.1

Section 9.0

51

9.2

9.3

TERMINATION
This Agreement may be terminated when:

Without Notice

7.1.1  The parties mutually consent to termination in writing.

With Notice

7.2.1  Any party breaches any duty, term or condition of this Agreement.

7.2.2  Either party commits a fraud or misrepresentation upon the other party.
7.2.3  Either party gives thirty (30) days’ notice.

TERMINATION OF PRIOR AGREEMENTS

The prior intergovernmental agreement between the parties dated concerning the
Project dated October 5, 2011 is hereby terminated.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

WAIVER; MODIFICATION

911

Failure by either party to enforce any provision of this Agreement does not
constitute a party's continuing waiver of that provision, any other provision or of
the entire Agreement. The rights and duties under this Agreement shall not be
modified, delegated, transferred or assigned, except upon the written- signed
consent of both parties.

ATTORNEYS' FEES

9.2.1 Attorney fees, costs and disbursements necessary to enforce this Agreement
through mediation, arbitration and/or litigation, including appeals, shall be
awarded to the prevailing party, unless otherwise specified herein or agreed.

LEGAL REPRESENTATION

9.3.1 In entering into this Agreement, each party has relied solely upon the advice of

their own attorney. Each party has had the opportunity to consult with counsel,
or now waives that right. Each party represents and warrants to the other that
they are fully satisfied with the representation received from their respective
attorneys.

Page 3 of 5 - INTERGOVENMENTAL AGREEMENT
TILLAMOOK COUNTY AND TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
between

TILLAMOOK COUNTY and the TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

9.4 NOTICES

9.4.1

Any notice required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and

deemed given when:

9.4.1.1 actually delivered, or

9.4.1.2 three (3) days after deposit in United States certified mail, postage
prepaid, addressed to the other party at their last known address.

9.5 LANGUAGE

95.1

The headings of the Agreement paragraphs are intended for information only and
shall not be used to interpret paragraph contents. All masculine, feminine and
neuter genders are interchangeable. All singular and plural nouns are
interchangeable, unless the context requires otherwise.

9.6 INTEGRATION

9.6.1

This Agreement supersedes all prior oral or written agreements between
DISTRICT and COUNTY regarding this matter. It represents the entire agreement
between the parties. Time is of the essence in all terms, provisions, covenants
and conditions in this Agreement.

9.7 SAVINGS

9.7.1

Should any clause or section of this Agreement be declared by a Court to be void
or voidable, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

9.8 JURISDICTION; LAW

9.8.1

This Agreement is executed in the State of Oregon and is subject to Tillamook
County and Oregon law and jurisdiction. Venue shall be in Tillamook County,
Oregon, unless otherwise agreed by the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, COUNTY and the DISTRICT have executed this Agreement on the dates written

below.

Dated this day of

, 2019.

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Doug Pilant, Manager

Page 4 of 5 - INTERGOVENMENTAL AGREEMENT
TILLAMOOK COUNTY AND TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
between

TILLAMOOK COUNTY and the TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Jim Huffman, Secretary

Dated this day of , 2019,

THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
FOR TILLAMOOK COUNTY, OREGON

David Yamamoto, Chair

Bill Baertlein, Vice-Chair

Mary Faith Bell, Commissioner

ATTEST:Tassi O’Neil, County Clerk

By:

Special Deputy

Page 5 of 5 - INTERGOVENMENTAL AGREEMENT

Aye

Nay

Abstain/Absent

I S

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Joel W. Stevens, County Counsel

TILLAMOOK COUNTY AND TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT



For Board Meeting of October 24, 2019
Agenda ltem # 20

MEMO TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS _
FROM: DOUG PILANT, GENERAL MANAGER M
SUBJECT: TCTD ADMINISTRATIVE EMPLOYEE STAFFING PLAN
Issue

Shall the Board authorize implementation of a revised Administrative Employee Staffing
Plan?

Background and Findings

1. The TCTD Board of Directors authorizes the General Manager to create employee
positions that will ensure the District's administrative and operational functions are
implemented efficiently.

2. This past year TCTD implemented the ADP Payroll and WorkForce online human
resources management software application, which automated and streamlined
many of the District’s payroll and HR data management tasks and processes.

3. Over the past few months the District engaged Heidi Mason, a certified PHR to
conduct an analysis that identified and quantified each administrative employee’s
current job duties and responsibilities and prepare recommendations on how to align
the District staff's administrative job duties to ensure the District's administrative
functions are being managed effectively and efficiently.

4. The proposed staffing plan and job descriptions have been included as Attachment
A along with a summary of what positions to establish and which positions to
reclassify or eliminate:

Positions to Establish Positions to Reclassify or Eliminate
Brokerage Manager Brokerage Supervisor
Finance Supervisor Accounting Specialist
Office Assistant n/a
Visitor's Center Customer Service (PT) | n/a

Recommendation

Staff recommends the Board approve Resolution 19-35 authorizing the General
Manager to implement the new Administration Employee Staffing Plan.

~
~ 7



Attachment A

610 11V

ONIdNLONYLSIY
JID3LVHLS

AJUDID1443
IAI1RJISIUIWPY
guloueyul




e

401EUIPIQ0O7)
uoneyodsuel|

Josiauadns
adesa0ig

(P3(14uN) 1si|eads juspusjuliadng
1stjenads YH guninunoody suoneladp

3JN10NJ1S JU34IND




—
.-

JUBISISSY AIIRIISIUIWPY la8eue |eldueuld

SU0I1ISOd p3||liun ‘panociddy




elep / 3unioday
elpaw |e120s
sjute|dwod Jawolsnd
uo dn uimoy|of

pue 3unedisanul

/ 8uiji} spioday
uoudodal saho|dwy
ssau||am aaAojdw3
S)IYs pue ‘s320jq
‘sanoJ uiudisap
yum Jadeueln
Je13UDD) SISISSY

(suoizeoyiniad

Buppeus sspn|out)
uswdojanap
3 Suiuuefd yas.1e)

-uou Joj Sujuietf Fuiulesy 13A1Q

ublzersodsuelp

JIOMA pa1e|ay ulwp

(-

1U344N)D

V¥ dH

suodsl pieoq

[lEW S3INQLIISIP Alyiuow auedald

pue S9AI339Y jo |eaoudde pue

M3IABJ JUBWaSeuRW
12Npuod ‘spiedswiil
1191 anoudde

SIBALIP ||e aunsul
3uipJeoquo pue
UO238S ‘JUBWIINIISY

syodau Ajssrienb
uo3a4Q aJe) aiedald

L3

S1ys paugisse synduj

Bulalyole Juswnioq ‘$3201q ‘s9Inou usisaqg

sa1epdn 3)ISgoM
Sasea|ad ssald

ssac0.d pig 1Iys
10} |043u02 AljenD

L]
L ]
(3

Sjuawysiuien sajepdn a11SqaM
Sasea|al $sald
Suruued JusAg

SjuaWaduelle |9ARS[

Suoije|aJ JogeT
dwod's,JfJ0M

8uissadsoud jjosAed
UOI1BJISIUIWIPE SART]
suoiIsanb H/H plal4
uoneJisiuiwpe

suoiie|ad Joge

L 2

Su0I1e311SaAU|

1uswadeuews
92uew.opsd
R SM3IASJ 3O

SPIq HYiys aieji|oed
1uswadeuew

} uonesuadwo)
ouew.oyiad

sa121jod |eldueuly JotensIIwpe s3ai1jod jeldueuly

991w AJosIApy
pung uoijeliodsuel|
|e1ads pue 198png
SI99IUN|OA |IAIN
pue sys) IsiaIadng

Buniodal jeruRUL Jayd1edsiq pue 1aALg

Josinuadng s3elsano.g
pue J01euipioo)
uoniejodsues)

Sunoeauod 2ignd

L 2

unipne 1 3ununoddyY
11sodap Ajiep

B H/v d/v ‘Bullig e Suiuue|d 3 ASa10135

juapuajuadng

10s1n19dng agesan0.g J3deuelp |esauan




(1d) @21A435
lawoisn)
131U8) S, JOYSIN
83.%%%.&%. 10J8UIPI00)
JUeIsISSY 0 ‘_waﬁm:u_ uoneyodsuel]

(PaIBUN)

(pajun)
luelsissy
aAleIISIuIWPY

Josialadng 1o3eue|p juspualuiadng
|erueuly a8elay0.g suonesadQ

ladeuen
|eJauan

9JN10NJ1S pasodold



A

|tew saInqglisIp
puB SaAI209Y
{suoneosiynue

/ $3suady|

Suiyaeas sspnpout)
juswdojaasp

g Suluue|d Jsaue)
(8uialyose / a8eaoas
/ 8uijiy) spiodsy
SIUSWYSIUIED
8uissasoud |joiAed
MRIAD
Juswadeuew

10} yodau uondadxa
aiedaud ‘spiedswin
119431 3noadde
SIBALIP [|B 34nsu3
ssad0.d Suipieoquo
pue ‘uol1d3|3s
‘JusWINIDAY
21El]I5e4
SUoNsSaND YH plaid
sysodap Ajiep

B d/v “4/v ‘Bulng

1UeISISSY 21140

L 2

ddv oul SHIys
paugisse sindu|

SHIYS pue ‘sydo|q
's91noJ 3uludisap
yim J38eue|p
[e19U3D) SISISSY
salepdn 91SqaMm
S9Sea|aJ ssald
Suiuue|d JusAg
sjuaws3duelse
[anea|

sishjeue

elep / 3uijoday
e|pawW [B120S
{Suiaiyoue / o8es0ls
/ 8ui|y) spioday
Sunaxewn

343]2 pieog

1UBISISSY
3AIIRISIUILUPY

*

YJOMN\ Pa1e|ay

syutejdwos
J8WoISNd

uo dn 3uimo||oy
pue 3uiiednsanul
‘Buinieday

SHIYs pue ‘s320|q
‘sa3noJ Suludisap
yum Jsseuen
|edauam S1SISsy
3uipieoquQo
weidoud Ayages
Sululen JannQ

101eU|pI00)

uopenodsuel)

101e15IUIWPY SIMD
Jojesisiujwipe
29)11ILWo)
AlosiApy pund
uopepodsuel)
|e1dads pue 193png
uoiNu3ooal Ry
ssauj[am aaAodw]
dwod s, 43310
uoljesisiujwipe
ETCE
uolesisiuiwpe
UENED|

) uollesuadwo)
2dueldwo)
saio1jod

dH 73 [BlDUBUlY
Sunuodau |eipueUY
3 3u@dpng
3uiseyaund

% 8u)10e1U0D J1|gNd
Sunipne

g 3ununNoday

UIUPY 7

dH

weJygoud
pJeoe||ay a8eue|Al o
suodau
Aj4auenb uo8as0
3.e) atedsid e
SIBALIP
-uou Joj Buiuiel] e
SYSD 10§
spJedsw)l anosdde
PUE M3IADY e

SI39UN|OA ] ININ
puUB SYs) Isiniadng e

J98eue(A s8easyo4g

pasodold

suondadxa

pue spiedauwi}

anoidde pue

Jodad uondaixa
PIEI3WIL MIIARY e
SuImaIAIBIU| o
SUole|a] JogeT e
SU01ESIISIAU| o
A1ajes o
SPIG }IYs S1EN|IE] o

1uswaseuew

9ouewioad R

SM3lAl Jaydledsiq
pue JaAUQ e

(Ld)

921AJI3S J3WOISN)

193U S,J0USIA

pue J01euipi00)

uolejiodsuel)
S3SINIAANS o

Juspualuadng
suoljetadp

ssado.d piq Yiys
10j |041U02 AJIjEND o
SHHYs pue ‘s30[q
‘S9IN04 UBISaQ e
SUOIIE|3J JOQET] e
A13jesS
Jjuswadeuew
32uewJopsd
R SMIIASL IO o

8ui3aspng e
Suiuue|d g A391e11S -

Jageue|pn jelauan




H1MOYD 3HNLnd
140ddNS OL 34NLONYLS
319V1VOS 31V3IHD

w

SNINIVYL YH
ONITIAOYHd ANV INV3IL
dIHSY3aV3T ONILSIX3

ONOWY SNOILINNA
YH ONIAV3IYdS Ad S1SOD
TINNOSY3d YH I3NA3Y

SISATYNY
VIVA/9ONILYOd3Y
ANV 'ONILINYYN

YIAIN TVID0S ‘Sa¥0D3Y
2179Nd ‘NOILINDOD3Y

FIA0TdINT

‘SSANTIIM FIAO NG
‘ONINNY1d 4334VD ANV
NOISSIDINS ‘SHIAINA
-NON 404 ONINIVYL
SV HONS SY3IyY
NI SdVD LNFYUND 174

QP
&

STOYLINOD
TVNYILNI NI ADN3IDI43d
INVIIJINDIS ONIGUVYD3Y

TO0-8TOC ONIANIS
FIVNUAIINT ANV SS3daav

NOISIAIQ
1INVAIT3IY 43H 4O SIH NO
SNO04 OL HIOVNVYIN A3A

HOV3 ONIMOTIV VIV
TVNOILINNG A9 S311NA
TVILNISST NDISSV

SNOILONNA
JAILVHISININGY
SAOo1d1SId
JHL ONIHSITdINODDV
NI ADN31Di443 IDNVHNI

,@ﬁ_

SoW021NQ

3ulin]1onJlsay
218916415




Tillamook County Transportation District
JOB DESCRIPTION
Adopted October 24, 2019

Job Title: Administrative Assistant
Supervised by: General Manager
Status: Full Time Non-Exempt Employee
Pay Range: $ to § Annually

$ to $ Hourly

POSITION SUMMARY

The Ad

ministrative Assistant is a confidential class position, responsible for a wide range of duties that

support the work of the General Manager. These responsibilities include serving as board clerk,
coordinating special projects, implementing public outreach events and social media campaigns,
preparing reports for the General Manager, serving as the primary point of contact for receiving and
processing public records requests, and properly maintaining the District’s records. The Administrative
Assistant will back up the Office Assistant as needed. The Administrative Assistant must demonstrate
good judgment, meet deadlines, and be able to handle confrontational or stressful situations, and work
effectively with other employees, the public, government employees, and vendors. The Administrative
Assistant fosters an overall positive atmosphere within the District.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS*

Serve as clerk to the board of directors, which includes setting meeting dates, making meeting
arrangements, preparing meeting materials, taking and producing minutes, posting agendas and
minutes on the District’s web page, and following public meetings laws.

In collaboration with General Manager, set budget workshop and committee meeting and
hearing schedules. Take and produce minutes. Post agendas and minutes on the District’s web
page.

Prepare and publish all required legal notices for board meetings, budget committee meetings,
budget workshops, and budget hearings.

Prepare agendas and resolutions for General Manager review as directed.

Assist General Manager in designing routes, blocks, and shifts. Input assigned shifts into the
District’s information systems.

Retrieve data from the District’s information systems in .csv format and prepare reports using
Microsoft Excel as directed by the General Manager.

Coordinate and carry out marketing activities (literature production/distribution, flyers, ads,
social media campaigns, public notices).

Plan and coordinate public outreach events.

Aid in the development, implementation and management of external communications efforts.
Update the District’s website as directed by the General Manager.

Prepare press releases for the General Manager to review.

Provide local media with notices of new services, human interest stories, newsworthy events,
and advertising.

Serve as the primary point of contact for receiving and processing public records requests.
Coordinate the retrieval of information and address routine questions or problems as necessary.
Maintain District records in compliance with federal, state, and local laws. Ensure proper record
storage, security, filing, retrieval, and destriction.

e



— Archive documents in compliance with legal requirements and District policy.
— De-escalate confrontational or stressful situations by exercising good judgment,
professionalism, and empathy.

ADDITIONAL DUTIES & RESPONSIBILITIES
— Back up the Office Assistant as needed.
— Make travel arrangements for General Manager and other members of the management team, as
directed by the General Manager.
— Respond to research requests from District management team. Search and review records to
retrieve information and files.
— Perform general office and secretarial duties as needed.

REQUIRED EDUCATION, KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND EXPERIENCE

— High school diploma or GED.

— Valid Oregon driver’s license.

— Must have excellent telephone, face-to-face, and written communication skills.

— Must be proficient with social media applications.

— Must demonstrate attention to detail in composing, typing, and proofing materials, establishing
priorities, and meeting deadlines.

— Must be able to import and export data to and from District systems and create reports using
Excel.

— Must be able to understand and follow written or oral instructions and proactively seek
clarification from General Manager when necessary.

— Must be able to maintain a high degree of confidentiality.

— Must demonstrate a high degree of ethical practice and personal integrity.

— Must possess strong organizational skills.

— Must have experience operating office machines (i.e. copier, fax, scanner, and ten-key
calculator)

— Typing speed of 50 words per minute or higher

PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS
Work is generally performed in an office environment.
— Occasional driving in and around Tillamook county.
— Frequent sitting, keyboarding and hearing voice conversations is required.
— Occasional bending, squatting, lifting up to 20 pounds, pushing, reaching and walking is
required.

* Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable qualified individuals with disabilities to perform
the essential functions of this position. Please see the TCTD Personnel Policies & Employee
Handbook, Policy 2(C) for additional information.

L



NW Rides Brokerage
JOB DESCRIPTION
Adopted October 24, 2019

Job Title: BROKERAGE MANAGER

Supervised by: General Manager

Status: Full Time Exempt Employee

Pay Range: $ to $ Annually
$ to $ Hourly

POSITION SUMMARY

Under general directions of the General Manager, the Brokerage Manager will oversee transportation
services programs managed under the NW Rides (NWR) Brokerage. This service will provide medical
and non-medical transportation primarily for older adults, Veterans, people with disabilities and low-
income families. The Manager will directly supervise Customer Service Representatives (CSRs) and
Scheduling Clerks (SCs) in a call center environment. The Manager is also responsible for resolving
customer, agency, and provider complaints. The Manager will coordinate with customers, brokerage
staff, hospitals, CCOs and transportation providers to verify accurate information.

The Manager is also responsible for assuring brokerage management, Coordinated Care Organizations
(CCO) and the Oregon Department of Human Services that quality customer service is being provided
to all NW Rides Customers by performing the following duties:

DUTIES & RESPONSIBILITIES

- Oversee and manage all CSRs and SCs. This includes, hiring, training, assigning and directing
work, coaching, conducting performance evaluations, rewarding and disciplining, and
terminating employees as necessary.

- Provide appropriate coaching, counseling, direction, and resolution to CSRs and SCs who
experience challenges at work.

- Create and maintain a high-quality work environment so CSRs and SCs are motivated to perform
at their highest level.

- Establish and continually evaluate brokerage processes and procedures that support Brokerage
standards and strategic directives. Suggest methods to improve operations, efficiency, and service
to the General Manager.

- Assist the General Manager with daily operation of the call center, including the development,
analyses, and implementation of staffing, training, scheduling and reward/recognition programs.

- Accept, investigate, document, and resolve complaints from customers, providers, and agency
representatives who request to speak with a supervisor. This includes communicating with the
parties involved in the complaint of the Supervisor’s findings, adjustments, and recommendations
verbally and in writing. Provide written summaries of these complaints to the Superintendent.

- Work with brokerage staff, providers, agency representatives, and customers to assure that
information 1s accurate.

- Follow up on recommendations from Management to ensure customer satisfaction.

- Maintain and provide communication with agencies as necessary.

- Perform accurate statistical record keeping for reports on program operation.

- Operate a high-volume multi-line phone system.

- Perform data entry using scheduling software. (Back-up to SC and CSR as needed).




- Regard client records as confidential information to the extent that confidential treatment is
provided under State and Federal law.

- Verify client attendance for continuing service requests.

- Test (Audit) a minimum of five percent (5%) of all rides booked for client attendance and/or
customer satisfaction.

- Conduct annual provider audits to ensure compliance with insurance requirements, driver training
and vehicle condition standards.

- Contribute to a positive working environment by consistently engaging in courteous behaviors
and communications.

- Use appropriate judgment in upward communication regarding brokerage or employee concerns.

- Work as a member/leader of special or ongoing projects that are important to area/process
improvement.

- Other duties as assigned as it pertains to the department.

REQUIREMENTS

— Strong customer service skills are required to perform this job successfully. An individual must
be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily.

— At least two (2) years of experience directly supervising or leading adults in a professional, civic,
or charitable context.

— To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to multi-task under highly stressful
conditions.

— Associates degree (A.A.) in business, management, or human resources or equivalent from a two-
year college or technical school, or one-year related experience and/or training; or equivalent
combination of education and experience.

— Knowledge of NWR service areas of Tillamook, Benton, Clatsop, Columbia, Lane, Lincoln, Linn,
Polk, Marion, Multnomah, Washington and Yamhill Counties boundaries.

— Experience with the most recent version of Windows operating systems and other software
programs including, but not limited to, Microsoft Office, Ecolane, Google and Google Earth.

— Ability to read and interpret documents such as maps, safety rules, operating and maintenance
instructions, and procedures manuals.

— Ability to write routine reports and correspondence.

— Exceptional communication and interpersonal skills as applied to interaction with co-workers,
supervisor, other providers and agencies, sufficient to ensure professional, courteous, and
empathetic exchanges of information.

— Ability to add, subtract, multiply, and divide in all units of measure, using whole numbers,
common fractions, and decimals.

— Ability to solve practical problems and deal with a variety of situations where limited
standardization may exist. Requires ability to interpret a variety of instructions furnished in
written, oral, diagram, or schedule form.

— May require a valid Oregon driver’s license.

— Ability to operate office machinery (i.e. copier, fax and scanner)

PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS

— Work is performed in a call center environment.

— Frequent sitting, keyboarding and hearing voice conversations is required.

— While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to sit; use hands to
finger, handle, or feel; talk; and hear. The employee is frequently required to stand, walk, and
reach with hands and arms.

— Occasional bending, squatting, lifting up to 10 pounds, pushing, reaching and walking is required.

B




— The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job.

— This job requires a significant amount travel in rural areas and periods of time away from the
office

Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential
functions.



Tillamook County Transportation District
JOB DESCRIPTION
Adopted October 24, 2019

Job Title: Financial Supervisor

Supervised by: General Manager

Status: Full Time Exempt Employee

Pay Range: $ to § Annually
$ to $ Hourly

POSITION SUMMARY

The Financial Supervisor is responsible for overseeing the District’s accounting, payroll and human
resources functions. The Financial Supervisor performs accounting and finance functions involving the
accounting, recording, and reporting of financial transactions of the District. In addition, the Financial
Supervisor develops and implements the District’s human resource policies and procedures. The
Financial Supervisor also administers employee benefits, directly supervises the Office Assistant, and
audits, reviews, and reconciles the District’s payroll. When assigned by the General Manager, the
Financial Supervisor assists others with special projects. The Financial Supervisor must demonstrate
good judgment, meet deadlines, and be able to handle confrontational or stressful situations, and work
effectively with other employees, the public, government employees, and vendors. The Financial
Supervisor fosters an overall positive atmosphere within the District.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS*

Accounting and Finance Functions:

— Assist General Manager in the preparation of monthly financial and operating reports for board
meetings.

— Attend board meetings as directed and be available for financial discussions.

— Assist General Manager with developing annual budget. Prepare final budget and resolution for
adoption by board of directors.

— Prepare monthly estimates of projected revenues and expenditures.

— Develop, update, maintain, and enforce the District’s financial policies and procedures.

— Account for grant funds and assist General Manager with preparing and filing periodic grant
reports.

— Audit accounts payable and receivables, including billing, payments, follow-up, and
maintenance of contracts and services.

— Work with District management team in developing solicitations, recommendations for award,
and contracts. Assist in contract negotiations as needed.

— Manage procurement process and ensure compliance with public procurement laws and
regulations.

— Work with District staff, vendors, and members of the public to resolve questions, conflicts, and
protests arising during the solicitation process.

— Monitor District spending and maintain a system of controls to ensure expenditures are
compared to adopted budget.

— Audit invoices, identify and correct discrepancies with vendors, balance to the general ledger,
and review checks to be signed by General Manager.

— Oversee a database system for financial reporting. Detect and correct errors by reviewing

N



reports and reconciling them with supporting documentation. Prepare adjustments and journal
vouchers as needed.

Maintain the fixed asset register.

Assist in the preparation and ongoing tracking of department and District budgets.

Reconcile cash accounts in the general ledger, prepare journal vouchers for corrections, and
post transactions.

Human Resource and Payroll Functions:

Oversee human resources function, including benefits administration, labor relations, and
statutory compliance with federal, state, and local employment.

Develop, update, maintain, and administer the District’s human resources policies, procedures,
programs, and benefits as directed by the General Manager.

Directly supervise Office Assistant; interview and select reporting staff; provide direction,
information communication, motivation, training, and leadership; monitor and evaluate
performance on an ongoing basis.

Manage, promote, and provide instruction on the District’s 457(b) deferred compensation
program.

Research, recommend, and implement employee wellness and recognition programs as directed
by General Manager.

Assist General Manager with negotiations of collective bargaining agreements (CBA).
Provide support and expertise to hiring managers to ensure all recruitment and selection
procedures comply with statutory and CBA requirements, and District policies.

Review payrolls to ensure accuracy and compliance with all applicable state and federal wage
and hour laws.

Audit and reconcile timesheets, payroll taxes, deferred compensation, benefit premiums, and
paid sick leave and vacation accruals.

Administer employee leaves of absence and manage workers’ compensation claims.

Prepare monthly, quarterly and year-end financial and payroll reports.

Facilitate management and employee understanding of payroll procedures.

De-escalate confrontational or stressful situations by exercising good judgment,
professionalism, and empathy.

ADDITIONAL DUTIES & RESPONSIBILITIES

Ensure quality control over shift bid process.

Assist with research and project development, and compile reports for board meetings and other
needs as directed.

Serve as administrator for the Budget and Special Transportation Fund Advisory Committees.
Support General Manager's efforts to apply for grant funding.

Assist with payroll processing and accounts receivable when needed.

Create documents and correspondence using computer and presentation programs.

Order or purchase routine supplies and equipment.

Other tasks as assigned by the General Manager.

REQUIRED EDUCATION, KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND EXPERIENCE

Must have Associate’s degree and at least one (1) year of human resource or payroll related
experience, and at least (3) years of accounting or finance related experience.

Must have complete familiarity and experience with general accounting practices, including
GAAP and accrual accounting.

Must have experience with payroll process and wage and hour law.



— Must have experience in public fund accounting, including grant management.

— Must have intermediate-level knowledge of employment law, labor law, and human resources
compliance issues.

— Must be able to maintain a high degree of confidentiality.

— Must demonstrate attention to detail in composing, typing, and proofing materials, establishing
priorities, and meeting deadlines.

— Must be able to understand and follow written or oral instructions and proactively seek
clarification from General Manager when necessary.

— Must demonstrate a high degree of ethical practice and personal integrity.

— Must have excellent telephone, face-to-face, and written communication skills.

— Must be proficient with computers, including windows-based applications, email and on-line
research.

— Must possess strong organizational skills.

— Must have experience operating office machines (i.e. copier, fax and scanner)

PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS
—  Work is performed in an office environment.
— Frequent sitting, keyboarding and hearing voice conversations is required.
— Occasional bending, squatting, lifting up to 20 pounds, pushing, reaching and walking is
required.

* Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable qualified individuals with disabilities to perform
the essential functions of this position. Please see the TCTD Personnel Policies & Employee
Handbook, Policy 2(C) for additional information.

P



Tillamook County Transportation District
JOB DESCRIPTION
Adopted October 24, 2019

Job Title: Office Assistant
Supervised by: Financial Supervisor
Status: Full Time Non-Exempt Employee
Pay Range: $ to $ Annually

$ to $ Hourly
POSITION SUMMARY

The Office Assistant is a confidential class position, responsible for a wide range of duties that support
the work of the Financial Supervisor. These responsibilities include maintaining accounts receivable,
ensuring employee timecards are received and approved in time for payroll, answering general
questions from District employees regarding human resource, payroll, and finance policies, processing
personnel action forms, facilitating the hiring and onboarding of new employees, and maintaining the
District’s records. The Office Assistant will back up the Administrative Assistant as needed. The Office
Assistant must demonstrate good judgment, meet deadlines, and be able to handle confrontational or
stressful situations, and work effectively with other employees, the public, government employees, and
vendors. The Office Assistant fosters an overall positive atmosphere within the District.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS*

— Support Financial Supervisor by maintaining accounts payable and receivable, printing checks,
issuing statements and invoices, and recording payments, deposits, and inter-fund transfers.

— Provide District staff with finance and human resource support by answering general questions
about the District’s human resource policies, procedures, programs, benefits, and
reimbursements.

— Provide timely information, assistance, and appropriate forms to employees on District benefit
programs, including medical, vision, dental, prescription, deferred compensation, employee
assistance, Family Leave and long-term disability.

— Support hiring managers by posting job announcements, scheduling interviews, following up
with candidates, ordering and scheduling pre-employment fingerprinting and screening, and
facilitating new hire orientation paperwork and onboarding.

— Follow up with managers and employees to ensure timely approval of employee time records.
Prepare timecard exception report for review and resolution by Operations Superintendent.

— When timecards have been approved by management, prepare and process payroll using payroll
system. Ensure compliance with all applicable state and federal wage and hour laws.

— Assist Financial Supervisor in implementing employee wellness and recognition programs.

— Maintain an updated seniority list as directed by management team.

— Receive and process garnishments.

— Track employee license and certification expiration dates. Proactively remind employees to
renew their required licenses and certifications 60 days and 30 days in advance of expiration.

— Maintain employee personnel files in compliance with legal requirements.

— Keep employee records up to date by processing Personnel Action Forms and similar employee
status information changes in a timely manner using the District’s HR information system and
payroll system.

— Respond to Oregon Employment Department requests for information in a timely manner.

—3



Facilitate timely COBRA notices.

Maintain the District’s official files and records for Union grievances. Monitor grievance
timelines and proactively follow up with management team to ensure the District meets all
requirements under the collective bargaining agreement.

Serve as the secondary point of contact for receiving and processing public records requests.
Coordinate the retrieval of information and address routine questions or problems as necessary.
Maintain District records in compliance with federal, state, and local laws. Ensure proper record
storage, security, filing, retrieval, and destruction.

Track key dates related to District contracts and notify management team for timely follow-up.
Archive documents in compliance with legal requirements and District policy.

De-escalate confrontational or stressful situations by exercising good judgment,
professionalism, and empathy.

ADDITIONAL DUTIES & RESPONSIBILITIES

Receive and distribute mail.

Back up the Administrative Assistant as needed.

Assist with inputting assigned shifts into the District’s information systems as needed.
Assist Financial Supervisor in implementing employee wellness and recognition programs.
Make travel arrangements for Financial Supervisor and other members of the management
team, as directed by the Financial Supervisor.

Respond to research requests from District management team. Search and review records to
retrieve information and files.

Perform general office and secretarial duties as needed.

Other tasks as assigned by the Financial Supervisor.

REQUIRED EDUCATION, KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND EXPERIENCE

High school diploma or GED.

Must have at least one (1) year of human resource or payroll related experience and one (1) year
of accounting or accounts receivable related experience.

Must have familiarity with general accounting practices, including GAAP and accrual
accounting.

Must have experience with payroll processing and wage and hour law.

Must be able to maintain a high degree of confidentiality.

Must demonstrate attention to detail in composing, typing, and proofing materials, establishing
priorities, and meeting deadlines.

Must be able to understand and follow written or oral instructions and proactively seek
clarification from Financial Supervisor when necessary.

Must demonstrate a high degree of ethical practice and personal integrity.

Must have excellent telephone, face-to-face, and written communication skills.

Must be proficient with computers, including windows-based applications, email and on-line
research

Must possess strong organizational skills.

Must have experience operating office machines (i.e. copier, fax, scanner, and ten-key
calculator)

PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS

Work is performed in an office environment.
Frequent sitting, keyboarding and hearing voice conversations is required.
Occasional bending, squatting, lifting up to 20 pounds, pushing, reaching and walking is

J

T2



required.

* Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable qualified individuals with disabilities to perform
the essential functions of this position. Please see the TCTD Personnel Policies & Employee
Handbook, Policy 2(C) for additional information.



Tillamook County Transportation District
JOB DESCRIPTION
Adopted October 24, 2019

Job Title: Visitor’s Center Customer Service
Supervised by: Operations Superintendent
Status: Part Time Non-Exempt Employee
Pay Range: $ to $ Annually

$ to $ Hourly

POSITION SUMMARY

The Visitor’s Center Customer Service position is responsible for creating a friendly experience for all

visitors

to the District’s Transit Visitor’s Center, many of whom will be traveling by bus to see the

Oregon coast. The Visitor’s Center Customer Service staff will greet and assist visitors at the Transit
Visitor’s Center, provide recommendations for their stay, offer transportation advice, and develop new
ideas for how the District can better engage with the general public. The Visitor's Center Customer
Service staff may occasionally drive small shuttles and vans. This position does not require a
Commercial Driver’s License.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS*

Create a friendly, accessible, and fun environment in the Transit Visitor’s Center by providing
outstanding customer service.

Gain a thorough understanding of the District’s transportation services and how they relate to
Oregon coast tourism offerings. Answer visitor inquiries and provide helpful suggestions.
Ensure tourism pamphlets and other marketing materials are stocked at all times.

Maintain tidy appearance of Transit Visitor’s Center.

Drive the Tillamook Creamery shuttle as needed.

Drive non CDL passenger van as needed.

De-escalate confrontational or stressful situations by exercising good judgment,
professionalism, and empathy.

ADDITIONAL DUTIES & RESPONSIBILITIES

Assist visitors with their bags as they board and exit District buses.
Provide feedback from visitors to Operations Superintendent in a timely manner.
Develop new ideas for ways the District may better engage with visitors and the general public.

REQUIRED EDUCATION, KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND EXPERIENCE

Valid Oregon driver’s license and driving record acceptable to the District’s insurer.

Must have excellent verbal and non-verbal communication skills.

Able to maintain a friendly, personable, and professional demeanor at all times. This position
will have constant contact with the public and frequent interactions with District staff.

Able to implement empathy, tact, and problem-solving skills to resolve visitor issues.

PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS AND WORK CONDITIONS

Work is performed on primarily on weekends in the District’s Transit Visitor’s Center.
Occasional weekday, holiday, and evening work may also be required.
Occasional driving in and around Tillamook county.



— Mild and infrequent physical exertion including, but not limited to, lifting (visitor bags,
marketing materials); reaching, bending, pushing, pulling, and carrying as necessary to maintain
tidiness of Transit Visitor’s Center; and climbing in and out of the Creamery shuttle and/or

passenger vans.
~ Work entails some exposure to cold, heat, and varied weather conditions.

* Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable qualified individuals with disabilities to perform
the essential functions of this position. Please see the TCTD Personnel Policies & Employee
Handbook, Policy 2(C) for additional information.

,/] i{: .



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

In the Matter of Adopting
a Revised TCTD Administrative

Staffing Plan RESOLUTION NO. 19-35

i g

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors for the Tillamook County Transportation District
has the authority to authorize employee positions; and

WHEREAS, the Board seeks to authorize employee positions which most
efficiently and effectively staff the District administrative functions; and

WHEREAS, TCTD engaged Heidi Mason, PHR / SPHR to conduct an analysis of
the District's existing staff duties and responsibilities and assist in the development of a
revised administrative staffing plan; and

WHEREAS, the District wishes to adopt and implement a revised administrative
employee staffing plan; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors authorizes the following new employee positions:

Brokerage Manager

Finance Supervisor

Office Assistant

Visitor Center Customer Service (PT)

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 24" day of October 2019.

ATTEST:

By: By:
Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager




